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The Stewards have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 30 June 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Group was primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in
Hong Kong, in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and
in managing Members’ social and recreational facilities.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 10.
All figures in the annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements are expressed in
millions of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group donated HK$3,500 million to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
Trust (the “Trust”) and HK$29 million for other charitable purposes.

STEWARDS
The Board of Stewards during the year and up to the date of this annual report is listed in the
“Board of Stewards” section.

Dr Simon S O Ip and Mr Anthony W K Chow were elected Chairman and Deputy Chairman
respectively immediately after the 2015 Annual General Meeting.

Mr Silas S S Yang was elected as a Steward at the 2015 Annual General Meeting for a one-year
term to replace Dr Rita Fan Hsu Lai Tai who resigned as a Steward.

In accordance with the Club’s Articles of Association, Mr Philip N L Chen, Mr Stephen Ip Shu
Kwan, The Hon Martin Liao and Mr Silas S S Yang will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. All four Stewards retiring by rotation, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year
under review. No transactions, arrangements or contract of significance in relation to the Club’s
business to which the Club or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Steward had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
The business review is contained on pages 2 to 6, and is part of the Report of the Stewards.

SUBSIDIARIES
The principal activities and Directors of the Club’s subsidiaries are shown on pages 60 to 61.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Stewards and is signed for
and on behalf of the Board.

Simon S O Ip
Chairman
22 July 2016



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB
(incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”)
and its subsidiaries set out on pages 10 to 61, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2016, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

STEWARDS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Stewards of the Club are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Stewards determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Stewards, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Club and its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2016, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 July 2016



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HEWER
BEASB=1THILFE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million itz Note 2016 2015
BEESHYE Number of race meetings 1 84 81
A RER TR Amounts wagered by local customers 199,234 188,947
ESR ot s ERIMNOEEZE Amounts of non-local bets
placed by commingling partners 3,462 2,488
RIEEER Total amounts wagered 2.2 202,696 191,435
EEREFHA Betting and lottery revenue 2.3 32,683 31,231
EEH R EFHER Betting and lottery duty (20,379) (19,540)
R FIMEEFHAE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (47) (51)
REES Lotteries Fund (1,282) (1,167)
R RAE Net margin and commission 4 10,975 10,473
Haplg A Other revenue 5 3,326 3,197
14,301 13,670
FSE %N Operating costs 6 (9,642) (8,961)
BETFEIESHE Donations to the Trust 10 (3,500) (3,500)
RERE Operating surplus 1,159 1,209
FRA Bk Interest income from deposits 109 156
BERERRHREAEGH (FB)/ Btk (Deficit)/surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios 7 (378) 407
BERESKREN (BB)/ Btk (Deficit)/surplus from Contingency Fund investments 8 (67) 231
BisE A Finance costs 24 (7) (8)
(343) 786
FHE&& AT (BE)/ &F Share of (losses)/profits of joint ventures 15 (550) 815
HIRRBITE AT 9 B &R Surplus before taxation 266 2,810
HiiE Taxation 9 (564) (561)
BREERRIFEE (B5R)/ Btk Net (deficit)/surplus after taxation (298) 2,249
HIRBIER AR R REBDR K Operating surplus after taxation and before
HEY X VR A& B R investment returns and gain on sale of properties 10 3,956 4,148
REEIR Investment returns 10 (933) 1,550
HEME WS Gain on sale of properties 179 51
HIRBIEE R B BEETESIBRAINR Surplus after taxation and before donations to the Trust 3,202 5,749
BEFEIESHRE Donations to the Trust (3,500) (3,500)
BB RIFEE (B5R)/ Bk Net (deficit)/surplus after taxation (298) 2,249

BTRAEEAT -ENHEBAGREUBHRRN B -

The notes on pages 15 to 61 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HeE2EKER
BEASB=1THILFE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million FfizF Note 2016 2015
BB RFEE (B5R)/ Btk Net (deficit)/surplus after taxation (298) 2,249
Htt2m (F5E) / ks Other comprehensive (loss)/income
TEEHIERARZRNIER Items that will not be reclassified to income statement
BB EFEENENTE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations 27 (187) (81)
HE AR EHN D BB ARSERNIEE Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to income statement
A ENKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
EEE2H Change in value
EEESRRAKREAS Debt securities and long-term investment portfolios 27 (294) 336
ERESKRE Contingency Fund investments 28 (249) 183
BRESREPREES Development Fund long-term investment portfolios 29 9) 11
it && A RMEM2EKE/ (B8) Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of
joint ventures 15 564 (809)
E¥HBRELRSE Currency translation differences 27 (166) 18
AEERBENHMEE (BHE)/ WE Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax (341) 158
AEEZME (FR)/ W8 Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (639) 2,407

BTRAEEAT -ENHEBAGREUBHRRN B -

The notes on pages 15 to 61 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HEMBRAER
~A=+AH at 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million itz Note 2016 2015
FREBEE Non-current assets
M -~ RABE R EEM Property, plant and equipment 12 10,038 9,017
EEAHAS TR T FEARE Leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases 13 1,177 1,291
REYZE Investment properties 14 1 1
SEQNTRE Investments in joint ventures 15 21,136 20,017
HRESRE Contingency Fund investments 16 7,522 3,464
REREAS Long-term investment portfolios 17 4,037 9,039
REFFENFIE Long-term prepayments 18 374 360
EIEFEHERE Deferred income tax assets 19 8 11
44,293 43,200
MENEE Current assets
BERFSEE Debt securities portfolio 20 507 1,009
B R EWFIE Loans and receivables 21 471 445
HiRBEE Other current assets 21 504 370
PTEERMIA Derivative financial instruments 22 15 21
EEER Short-term deposits 23 2,313 2,466
RERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 5,303 5,885
9,113 10,196
mEaE Current liabilities
HHIER Short-term loans 24 (111) (150)
B SR HEMEMIRK Trade and other payables 25 (6,222) (6,065)
FE W R IE Receipts in advance (365) (320)
REAFREHRAE Current income tax liabilities (467) (511)
THESHMIA Derivative financial instruments 22 (48) )
(7,213)  (7,049)
REBNEEFAE Net current assets 1,900 3,147
FEREBEE Non-current liabilities
REFSHAR Deferred income tax liabilities 19 (387) (328)
$TEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 22 (135) -
RERFIFTE Defined benefit scheme 26 (871) (580)
(1,393) (908)
44,800 45,439
(EA] Reserves 27 22,864 28,845
ERES Contingency Fund 28 20,747 15,396
BRES Development Fund 29 1,189 1,198
EEBE Total equity 44,800 45,439
=) Simon S O Ip
EHR Anthony W K Chow
Ak Stewards

B+RAEEAT-ENHEBEAFSBBRRKRN—

The notes on pages 15 to 61 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEEREER
BRES BRES
f##%  Contingency Development ko)

BEBT in HK$ million Reserves Fund Fund Total
—O—hRE+LHA—H&S Balance at 1 July 2015 28,845 15,396 1,198 45,439
FRIL 2R FREE B Net deficit after taxation (298) - - (298)
i Transfers (5,266) 5,266 - -
REERBIZENWEMSEEIE Other comprehensive loss

for the year, net of tax (417) 85 9) (341)
REEZHEEBEBLE Total comprehensive loss for the year (5,981) 5,351 9) (639)
ZO—RERNA=THERH Balance at 30 June 2016 22,864 20,747 1,189 44,800
—O—MELEB— B4R Balance at 1 July 2014 27,245 14,644 1,143 43,032
MRBI B AR ER Net surplus after taxation 1,487 718 44 2,249
REERBEHEMEE KGR Other comprehensive income

for the year, net of tax 113 34 11 158
REEZEWEETE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,600 752 55 2,407
—O—REANB=1H&s% Balance at 30 June 2015 28,845 15,396 1,198 45,439

BTRAEEAT -ENHEBAGREUBHRRN B -

The notes on pages 15 to 61 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEBERER
BEASB=1THILFE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million FfizF Note 2016 2015
=T Operating activities
EETEMELENRS Cash generated from operations 30 2,695 1,755
EXHRE Interest paid (7) (8)
2 TS Income tax paid (509) (403)
EEFEMEENTFRS Net cash generated from operating activities 2,179 1,344
REES Investing activities
A A =18 A U L ERERE S Decrease in short-term deposits with maturities
more than 3 months 153 1,549
BEYE - REREM Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,819) (2,502)
HEREWE Sale of investment properties 187 59
B WERI S Interest received 127 246
EWER S Dividends received 93 266
HEEQARMETE Injection into joint ventures (2,324) (2,460)
m&E A aEE Redemption from joint ventures 1,198 1,756
BEAHEENKEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (2,657) (1,671)
HEMRBENKEE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets 3,740 1,553
HITESBMI AR (4)/ WFERIE Net (payment)/receipt for derivative financial instruments (26) 34
REREASHFFIEM Increase in deposits held in
long-term investment portfolios (317) (329)
RETBFANFERS Net cash used in investing activities (2,645) (1,499)
REES Financing activities
EEEE Repayment of borrowings (39) (6)
BAEBEHE X HFWFERE ST Net interest expenses paid on interest rate swaps (27) -
RMETBFANFRSE Net cash used in financing activities (66) (6)
ReRRLEBWFRL Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (532) (161)
FURERRLEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,885 6,031
i (BE)/ s Exchange (losses)/gains (50) 15
FRESRRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5,303 5,885
RERREZEYEFIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
ySE-EER N Short-term deposits 23 4,218 4,695
RITER - BeREMRHES Bank balances, cash and other liquid funds 23 1,085 1,190
5,303 5,885

BTRAEEAT -ENHEBAGREUBHRRN B -

The notes on pages 15 to 61 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION
The Group is primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong Kong and in
operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and in managing
Members’ social and recreational facilities. The Club is incorporated in Hong Kong with liability
limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong
Kong. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out on pages 60 to 61.

The last four race meetings of the 2014/15 racing season were held on 1 July 2015, 5 July 2015,
8 July 2015 and 12 July 2015 (“July 2015 race meetings”) and the last three race meetings of the
2015/16 racing season were held on 1 July 2016, 6 July 2016 and 10 July 2016 (“July 2016 race
meetings”). Accordingly, the financial results of July 2015 race meetings have been included in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2016 and the financial results of July
2016 race meetings will be included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending
30 June 2017. The 2014/15 and 2015/16 proforma consolidated income statement for the full
racing season is shown on page 62.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$
million), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 10 to 61 were approved by the Board of Stewards
on 22 July 2016.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.

(a) New interpretation and amendments that are relevant to the Group’s operations and are
effective for the current accounting period

No new interpretation and amendments to published standards relevant to the Group’s operations
are effective for the current accounting period.

15
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(b) New standards and amendments that are relevant to the Group’s operations but are not yet
effective and not early adopted

The following new standards and amendments have been published and are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2016.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangement — Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

in Joint Operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements: Equity Method

Annual Improvements 2014 Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Group is still in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these new standards
and amendments, except for HKFRS 9, will be in the period of initial application. It is not yet in a
position to state whether these new standards and amendments will have a significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

HKFRS 9 has three financial asset classification categories for investments in debt instruments:
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“OCI”) and fair value through profit
or loss. Classification is driven by the entity’s business model for managing the debt instruments
and their contractual cash flow characteristics.

A debt investment is classified as “Fair value through OCI” only if both of the following criteria
are met: the objective of the Group’s business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell financial assets; and the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. If either
of the two criteria above is not met, the debt instrument is classified as “fair value through profit
and loss”.

Investments in equity instruments are always measured at fair value.

Upon adoption, restatement of comparatives is not required but entities are permitted to restate
comparatives if they can do so without the use of hindsight. If an entity does not restate comparatives,
it should adjust the opening balance of its retained earnings to take account of the effect of applying
the new standard in the year of initial application.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.2 Amounts wagered

The consolidated income statement presents amounts wagered as the amounts wagered by local
customers and amounts of non-local bets placed by commingling partners.

2016
e E = EEEY BHIEE
BEAA=THLFE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football i @
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
IR REE R 4R Amounts wagered by local customers 103,891 86,795 8,548 199,234
EEFMEEERIMOTELE Amounts of non-local bets
placed by commingling partners 3,462 - - 3,462
107,353 86,795 8,548 202,696
2015
R EEEY BEHIEE
BEAXB=1THILFE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football s s
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
A RER TR Amounts wagered by local customers 102,918 78,249 7,780 188,947
EEFMEEERIMOTELE Amounts of non-local bets
placed by commingling partners 2,488 - - 2,488
105,406 78,249 7,780 191,435
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2.3 Betting and lottery revenue

The Group reports net gains and losses arising from all local betting and lottery activities as revenue,
which is the amounts wagered by local customers net of betting dividends, rebates and lottery
prizes. A reconciliation of the amounts wagered by local customers and betting and lottery revenue
is shown in note 4.

2.4 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements, made up to 30 June 2016,
of the Club and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and joint ventures.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has the rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Club’s statement of financial position, the investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries and joint ventures
are accounted for by the Club on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets.

17



18

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 5 3% 2= Bit &

2 EEETHBR ()
2.4 ZERE (&)
(b) EEZH
SECEEBMEREENS I REARESE
ZH o REBEBBUBRESEAEIS  EaERH
BFEENREEE  DRESREENGHENRE
£ MABEELEREE DT - KECTEHEE
ZHNME > TEEZERFAEGE LT - GEAT
RARRENER ©

RIBEZEE EEEQARSANES R
BATER » HEBREEERIEEZ = sEE
REMEEREEBMELAZ - MEEMENEE
DEEHE > ENBBBEAESE ATMEER (B85
ERIEREEESE DRFENTFRE I NE
ARER)  AEEETSRIEMNEE  RIEE
EEREE DRAREESERREELAR

SEHEEGE QARG WA B RS S/
WAEEESE QRS ERZAR - RIEGEREETR
REZPERNEELRRE  SARSEEHELT
LIS - EE QTN BEREELEBET - LR
BEEEMERNBRER—% -

EEEE-BEEQTRANEEEERRD B
BN AERS SR - BERERHEthEERERE
BEEAREESHOERNNRRNEE  EREEEE
BESEERBSHAEINARGEE - BIRLAIE
ZEH A BHI AWK ©

25 BRESE
FENERES  RERERIEF - BERKRR
REES EPESREBLSNEEERER ; #&
TEERHBEIR UNSHEEENHE  RERSENS
HAHREAKREER ; SMEES/RAEENE IS
Az - ERESRREAESRENTSER 85
RBRRERR SENERNES REEEEGR
MBEFZRFTRANREINE S MFEE o
ERESRE (BRHESELARNKRE  ABE
EEeRZEES ([REE£]) KStellar Performer
GlobalSeries ([EHEE ])) NIFEEERE
W2 MEARIZBAFEEIER  BERRERFIE
UBRHBRZESRESFESHNRELRIN - EHES
REMBHESEEIERE  WBERENEBFA
ZHEAESREHES - FRGBRESRENBEEEN
BT BCRENKTE2.9

26 BRES
ESSSESKERARNETHRREES  NAME
BREAES  LERERB(EERE ESREME
RFHFRMEBERENR . BEE2ENKER
t - EEFRENRERS  EFAKINEESS
RARESEASERSESRE  URMAD AR
NEiFrealkES - BRESHNMBEE - &
FIARBREAAZRA

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.4 Consolidation (cont.)

(b) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
and movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the ownership interest in a joint venture is reduced, but continues to apply the equity
method, it shall reclassify to the income statement the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be required to be reclassified to the income statement on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

2.5 Contingency Fund
The Club’s Contingency Fund is held to provide a source of funds in the event that income from
betting operations should cease temporarily; to finance major capital projects, either for the Club
or for the Hong Kong community; to finance major renovations to improve the Club’s substantial
investment in property, plant and equipment; or for any other special purposes as deemed
appropriate by the Stewards. The Contingency Fund represents the market value of the Contingency
Fund investments and this is adjusted annually through the receipt of investment income, realised
surplus or deficit, revaluation of investments and, when necessary, the transfer of additional funds.
The Contingency Fund investments (including investments in the joint ventures: HKJC Equity
Trust Fund (“Equity Trust”) and the Stellar Performer Global Series (“Bond Trust”)) are held for non-
trading purposes. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period, except for loans
and receivables and investments in the Equity Trust and the Bond Trust. The surplus derived from
Contingency Fund investments is reinvested and deficit absorbed in the Contingency Fund portfolio.
The accounting policy for the financial assets of the Contingency Fund investments is stated in
note 2.9.

2.6 Development Fund

The Development Fund maintained under The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited, is held
to accumulate adequate funds to finance future membership facilities. The annual transfer from
the net surplus of the year is approved by the Stewards taking into consideration the operating
surplus, investment income earned by this Fund, and the amounts of entrance and qualification
fees of Full and Corporate Members, and Country Concession Scheme joining fees received during
the year. The financial assets of the Development Fund are included in long-term investment
portfolios.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.7 Long-term investment portfolios

The primary purpose of the long-term investment portfolios (including investments in the Equity
Trust and the Bond Trust) is to invest surplus funds in excess of normal operational requirements
for capital appreciation over the medium to long-term.

These portfolios are held for non-trading purposes and are stated at fair value at the end of the
reporting period, except for loans and receivables and investments in the Equity Trust and the
Bond Trust. The surplus derived from these investments is reinvested and deficit absorbed within
these portfolios. The accounting policy for the financial assets of the long-term investment portfolios
is stated in note 2.9.

2.8 Debt securities portfolio

The primary purpose of debt securities is to invest surplus funds for cash management and yield
enhancement. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The accounting policy
for the financial assets of debt securities portfolio is stated in note 2.9.

2.9 Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and loans and receivables (including
cash and cash equivalents). The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of the financial assets at initial
recognition. The Contingency Fund investments, long-term investment portfolios and debt securities
portfolio may contain these financial assets. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade day - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with the
transaction costs expensed in the income statement. Financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period. They comprise local and overseas listed or unlisted equities, debt securities and/
or alternative investments. Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and retained in the investment
revaluation reserve until the assets are sold or impaired.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the income statement as “Surplus/deficit from
securities investments and long-term investment portfolios” or “Surplus/deficit from Contingency
Fund investments”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the income statement as part of financial surplus. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the income statement as part of financial surplus when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Alternative investments include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds, private real
estate funds and multi-assets. For those which do not have quoted market prices in an active
market, their fair values will be determined with reference to the values established by external
fund managers using valuation techniques.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.9 Financial assets (cont.)

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category consists of derivative financial instruments. The Group uses derivatives such as
interest rate swaps, equity options, foreign exchange forward contracts and future contracts to
manage its financial risks and to facilitate the implementation of its investment strategies. Derivatives
are initially recognised at fair value on the date derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value.

Changes in the fair value of these assets are included in the consolidated income statement in
the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference between the net sale
proceeds or the net payment and the carrying value is included in the consolidated income
statement unless the derivatives are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current assets.

(c) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method and are included in current assets, except for amounts that are expected
to be settled or with maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period where
these are classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “Loans and receivables” as shown in note 21,
short-term deposits, deposits and fund awaiting investments under non-current assets and cash
and cash equivalents as stated below.

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and with original maturities of three months or less. Deposits
placed at the bank for a fixed term of more than 3 months are classified as “Short-term deposits”.

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

(a) Assets classified as available-for-sale

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated
income statement.

For equities and alternative investments classified as available-for-sale, significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated income statement - is reclassified
from investment revaluation reserve to consolidated income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity instruments and alternative investments
are not reversed through the consolidated income statement.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (cont.)

(b) Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.11 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land under finance
leases are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land under finance leases over the lease term

Buildings 25 years

Plant and equipment ranging from 10% to 33% per annum

Projects in progress no depreciation is provided on projects in progress until
they are ready for use in the manner as intended by
management. On completion, the project costs are
transferred to the appropriate property, plant and

equipment.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.25).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is de-recognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year in which they are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

2.12 Investment properties
Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are
not occupied by the entities in the Group, are classified as investment properties. Investment
properties are measured initially at their cost, including related transaction costs, and subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. They are
depreciated on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives at the same rate as buildings.

The gain or loss on disposal of investment property is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

2.13 Leases

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
2.13 Leases (cont.)
Leases of assets where the lessee has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower
of the fair value of the leased assets or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the capital and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the capital balances outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in non-current liabilities. The finance charges are charged to the consolidated
income statement over the lease term.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives
or the lease term.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, lease income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

2.14 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

2.15 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average cost less provision for diminution in value.

2.16 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Club’s subsidiaries and joint
ventures operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income taxation is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences

arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated

financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise from employee benefits, depreciation

on property, plant and equipment and investment properties. Taxation rates enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period are used to determine deferred income taxation.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable

profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.16 Current and deferred taxation (cont.)

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.17 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Club’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from
translation at year-end exchange rate of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. Assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period. The differences arising from translation are recognised in the consolidated income statement
except for translation differences on non-monetary items of available-for-sale financial assets, such
as equities, which are included in the investment revaluation reserve.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available-
for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency different from
Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

— assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of each reporting period;

— income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.18 Borrowings and borrowing costs
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred, except to
the extent that they are capitalised when they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.19 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.20 Receipts in advance

Cash that is prepaid by members on membership subscriptions, entrance and qualification fees,
horse imports and pre-sale amounts that are received before the relevant betting services have
been rendered are included under receipts in advance.

2.21 Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22 Revenue recognition
Revenue from horse race betting represents amounts wagered by local customers net of betting
dividends and rebates and is recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from football betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and is
recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from the lottery represents commission income and is recognised when the relevant
betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from membership subscription fees is recognised over the subscription period.

Revenue from membership entrance and qualification fees is recognised in the month of election
of members and when no significant uncertainty as to its collectibility exists.

Revenue from gate admission to race events and racing sponsorship income is recognised when
the event has been held.

Revenue from catering sales, other member services, stable and livery service charges and sale
of souvenir items are recognised when the relevant services have been rendered and relevant
goods have been sold.

Revenue from risk management service fee is recognised when the relevant service has been
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Co-ordination fees and licence fees from inbound commingling are recognised on an accrual
basis.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.23 Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) provides pension benefits to employees upon retirement
with reference to their final salaries.

The liability recognised in the consolidated and Club’s statements of financial position in respect
of the Scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation (“DBO”) is calculated annually
by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market
yields of government securities which have terms to maturity approximating terms of the related
pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.

(b) Defined contribution scheme

Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme are recognised as staff costs in the
consolidated income statement for the year when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully for the contributions. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

(c) Bonus and annual leave

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. A provision for bonus is recognised
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation. Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

2.24 Related party

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered to be related
to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or
where the Group and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals
or entities.

2.25 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are not ready to be used or have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation
and/or amortisation and are tested at least annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to exercise significant
judgements in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates
and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions
or using different assumptions.

3.1 Estimated useful life and depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Group estimates the useful lives of the various categories of property, plant and equipment
on the basis of a planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage experience. Depreciation
is calculated using the straight-line method at rates sufficient to write off their cost to the residual
value over their estimated useful lives (note 2.11).

Actual useful lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a change
in estimated useful lives and therefore depreciation expense in future periods.

3.2 Pension costs

The Group employs an independent actuary to conduct annual actuarial valuation of the Group’s
retirement plans. The determination of the Group’s obligation and expense for the defined benefit
element of these plans is dependent on certain assumptions and factors including long-term salary
increase rate provided by the Club, which are disclosed in note 26 (d). In determining the appropriate
discount rate, the Group considers the market yields of government securities which have terms
to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension obligation. Changes to the principal
actuarial assumptions can affect the present value of plan obligations and service costs in
future periods.

3.3 Income tax

Judgement is required in determining the income tax and deferred tax provision. Final tax outcome
may be different from the amounts that were initially recorded. The Group recognises liabilities
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be payable. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination
is made.

3.4 Asset impairment

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing
whether: (1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values; (2) the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows from the asset using estimated
cash flow projections; and (3) the cash flows are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions adopted by management to determine the level, if any, of impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could significantly
affect the Group’s reported financial position and results of operations.

3.5 Impairment of available-for-sale equity investments
The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when an available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired. This determination requires significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the group evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; and the financial health of and short-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow.

If all of the declines in fair value below cost were considered significant or prolonged, the Group
would suffer an impairment loss, being the transfer of the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity on the impaired available-for-sale financial assets to the income statement.
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4 NET MARGIN AND COMMISSION

Net margin represents the amounts wagered by local customers on horse races and football net
of the related betting dividends, rebates, betting duty, and payment to racing jurisdictions outside
Hong Kong. Betting duty is calculated in accordance with the Betting Duty Ordinance and the

Betting Duty Regulations.

Commission represents the amounts wagered on the lottery net of related prizes, duty and

payment to the Lotteries Fund.

2016
BEARB=1THILFE for the year ended 30 June Horgszgfz Eoigfj/l s @
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
IR REE R 4R Amounts wagered by local customers 103,891 86,795 8,548 199,234
BELE  BHkESES Betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes (87,043) (74,892) (4,616) (166,551)
BERESRRA Betting and lottery revenue 16,848 11,903 3,932 32,683
EEBRRESELH Betting and lottery duty (12,291) (5,951) (2,137) (20,379)
FRTF ohith B F #ehE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (47) - - (47)
REES Lotteries Fund - - (1,282) (1,282)
R REE Net margin and commission 4,510 5,952 513 10,975
2015

BEASB=1THILFE for the year ended 30 June Horgszgfz Eoigfj/l s @
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
A RER TR Amounts wagered by local customers 102,918 78,249 7,780 188,947
BELE  BHkESES Betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes (86,454) (67,061) (4,201) (157,716)
EEREFWA Betting and lottery revenue 16,464 11,188 3,579 31,231

BEHREFEHEH Betting and lottery duty (12,001)  (5,594)  (1,945) (19,540)
HFRF ohith B S #eAE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (51) - - (51)
REES Lotteries Fund - - (1,167)  (1,167)
RS Net margin and commission 4,412 5,594 467 10,473

AESBHHAEERARRERERE =0
—5/—AER=O—B/-EFNHESEERE
WEHZETE - RRBYHASHRANE S 25
TS AARESNERANRERENES 2
S EMHE -

Betting duty on local horse races is charged on a progressive sliding scale on the betting revenue,
reaching the maximum rate of 75% in 2015/16 and 2014/15. Betting duty on football betting is
charged at the rate of 50% on the betting revenue, while lottery duty on the Mark Six is charged

at 25% on the amount wagered.
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5 Hibig A 5 OTHER REVENUE
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
BRI E Charges for catering services 903 890
28 Membership fees 828 734
EERESRKEKE Stable and livery service charges 599 576
EAFMEEE X NNBRERFTE Co-ordination fees and licence fees from commingling partners 252 178
HEME S Gain on sale of properties 179 51
ESHRERE Racing related income 160 154
EBREEREE Risk management service fee 123 199
HELSmERE Sale of souvenir items 42 48
SRR Royalty income 23 138
Hebg A Other revenue 217 229
3,326 3,197

6 FBERK 6 OPERATING COSTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
BT (BiEE11) Staff costs (note 11) 4,092 3,835
W - REBERBMITE (HFE12) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 12) 1,546 1,230
BERD Prize money 1,072 959
YRR A RS Supplies and utilities 850 646
HEE MR Cost of inventories sold 560 565
HIEREER Repairs and maintenance 303 228
B EEEENES Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 174 163
EEBENEEL R Amortisation for leasehold land and

4 tth{E FARERREY (FfIEE13) land use rights under operating leases (note 13) 28 30
FIAIE#EST TREE A MEEE ARt Capitalisation of amortisation to projects in progress (28) (30)
BZEE S Auditor's remuneration 8 6
REMEFRE (HEE14) Depreciation of investment properties (note 14) - 1
=10 Stewards’ remuneration - -
HAb L= AR Other operating costs 1,037 1,328

9,642 8,961

7 EHRERRYREHEEN (B518)/ 2%

7 (DEFICIT)/SURPLUS FROM SECURITIES INVESTMENTS AND LONG-TERM

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
HETHHEMBEENRER Surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 110 92
At EN K EERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets (83) -
FIRERE K Dividend income from listed equities 27 30
SERERE WG Dividend income from alternative investments - 168
F R ERE SRS WS Interest income from listed debt securities 24 55
Ik E i ERE SR B S Interest income from unlisted debt securities 4 7
PTESMIANT (F5E)/ I Net (losses)/gains of derivative financial instruments (215) 13
HIBER Exchange differences (241) 47
BEWE Management fees @) (5)

(378) 407
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8 (DEFICIT)/SURPLUS FROM CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS

BEET in HK$ million 2016 2015
HETHHEEMBEENRER Surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 88 174
AR HEM B EERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets (213) -
FIBRERE K Dividend income from listed equities 66 68
W E Management fees (8) (11)
67) 231
9 #HIE 9 TAXATION
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
ANER PSR Current income tax
- B8 - Hong Kong 414 434
- BB - outside Hong Kong 50 52
- BEFERAR — adjustments in respect of prior years 1 (27)
EAEFRSHL (FIRE19) Deferred income taxation (note 19)
- B8 - Hong Kong 120 102
- BB - outside Hong Kong (21) =
564 561

BRFEHDBREANFEMFERBENERD 2+
AL (ZO—HF B2t HA) BRFHE -
BB UIMNERBUGERTEENFISH - CREBELE
i PR RAE IR S o
SERBARBMEENERTIE  BREFE
FEHH R ENBIRERNT ¢

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong has been provided at the
rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The taxation on the Group’s surplus before taxation differed from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015

HIRRBITE AT 9 B &R Surplus before taxation 266 2,810

BFE16.5% (ZO—H%E : 16.5%) st & Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) 44 464

HtE RN E S RB RS Effect of different income tax rates in other countries (1) 12

BARR UGBS 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (43) (276)
FAI0%E R H R s S E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 526 368

BIEFERE Adjustments in respect of prior years 1 (27)
Hith Others 37 20

HIEZH Taxation charge 564 561

10 B/ 10 DONATIONS

BETEIESHE  RIEEEHRETESWES  Donations to the Trust represent donations of the Group to the Allocations Fund of the Trust for

B/ fHMERERER -

MBRBIIRR LA R R ET R E E ] % S a8 Al
MESRS REEEERBTEIESHIEN
BEE.

REDBEARFRANERE FHRERRHR
EHANER/ B BRESRENEER/ B8 -
BHRBERAURAMEREESRESESHEE/

A o

charitable purposes.

Operating surplus after taxation and before investment returns and gain on sale of properties is
the basis for determining the Group’s donations to the Trust.

Investment returns include interest income from deposits, deficit/surplus from securities
investments and long-term investment porfolios, deficit/surplus from Contingency Fund investments,
finance costs and share of losses/profits of the Equity Trust and the Bond Trust.
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11 BIHRE 11 STAFF COSTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
FreREMBA Salaries and other costs 3,792 3,555
REMAETE Defined contribution plan
EBRERA Pension costs 56 46
IRIES TR Contributions to MPF scheme 98 90
RERAGE - RINEHA (FIFE26) The Scheme — pension costs (note 26) 146 144
4,092 3,835
12 Y% - SREEREEH 12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
RMERHRE L1 EETH
Leasehold RN EM Ti2EA
land under BgF Plant and Projects in ko)
BEBT in HK$ million finance leases Buildings  equipment progress Total
—O-R&EtA—BRAE Cost at 1 July 2015 1,537 5292 13,929 1,983 22,741
BE Additions - 86 1,211 1,362 2,659
i Transfers - 81 796 (877) -
EREREYE Transfer to investment properties - (6) - - (6)
HERH Disposals and write-offs (13) (20) (456) - (489)
B HRERE Currency translation differences - - (36) (73) (109)
“O—AR"EARA=THEAE Cost at 30 June 2016 1,524 5,433 15,444 2,395 24,796
ZO—aFtRA—HEBRERHE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2015 (1,031) (3,060) (9,632) (1) (13,724)
REENE Depreciation for the year (11) (161) (1,374) - (1,546)
EREREYE Transfer to investment properties - 6 - - 6
HERH Disposals and write-offs 6 20 455 - 481
B HRELRE Currency translation differences - - 25 - 25
TO—RERA=THEBITERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2016 (1,036) (3,195) (10,526) (1) (14,758)
ZO—RERNA=ZTHEREEFEE Net book value at 30 June 2016 488 2,238 4,918 2,394 10,038
—O—MEER—HRAE Cost at 1 July 2014 1,537 4,375 12,304 2,278 20,494
bl Additions - 168 1,378 1,069 2,615
i Transfers - 749 618 (1,367) -
BERTH Disposals and write-offs - - (374) - (374)
EWHRELRE Currency translation differences - - 3 3 6
—O—EHFEARA=THEAE Cost at 30 June 2015 1,537 5,292 13,929 1,983 22,741
ZO—MFtA—HEBRERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2014 (1,020) (2,931) (8,909) 2 (12,862)
REENE Depreciation for the year (11) (129)  (1,090) - (1,230)
BERH Disposals and write-offs - - 368 369
EWHRELRE Currency translation differences - - (1) - (1)
“O—HFEARA=THEBITERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2015 (1,031) (3,060) (9,632) (1) (13,724)
ZO—REARA=THEREZE Net book value at 30 June 2015 506 2,232 4,297 1,982 9,017




13 BEAVHEE I R T ERE

13 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
+tA—BRARE Cost at 1 July 1,436 1,427
B HBERE Currency translation differences (97) 9
NE=tTHRRE Cost at 30 June 1,339 1,436
+tA—HARE#H Accumulated amortisation at 1 July (145) (114)
PR Amortisation for the year (28) (30)
B HBERE Currency translation differences 11 (1)
RA=1 B RE#H Accumulated amortisation at 30 June (162) (145)
NE=1THREFE Net book value at 30 June 1,177 1,291

14 BREME 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
+tA—HBAE Cost at 1 July 25 25
ERRET Transfer from buildings 6 =
28 Disposals 2) -
RA=THRAME Cost at 30 June 29 25
tA—HRBEHE Accumulated depreciation at 1 July (24) (23)
REEHE Depreciation for the year - (1)
ERRET Transfer from buildings (6) =
BE Disposals 2 =
RA=ZTHEBIE Accumulated depreciation at 30 June (28) (24)
RA=ZTHEREFE Net book value at 30 June 1 1

REWEEN=O—AR"FAA=ZTHRZ=O—RFR
A=1H  BBYNESEREXMEN [ BAREHEET
fEEERIAR AR ETERNMLE - IEREMEIIURN
B o REBPR - REMWENATFEES T —R—
FToEBER (ZO—&F  MENF=BEERHAT) -
TROMBGEELSRED - UAFEEFSENR
‘-
NP EETERE
RANA=1TBUTHARFENAFEE

The investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2016 and 2015 by independent, professionally
qualified valuer Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited. The investment properties are located in
Hong Kong. The fair value of the investment properties was HK$1,112 million (2015: HK$983 million)

at the end of the reporting period.

The following table analyses the investment properties measured at fair value, by valuation

method.

Fair value hierarchy
Fair value measurements as at 30 June

2016 2015

EXTABRE EXTTERE

BWASH WASH

Significant Significant

unobservable  unobservable

inputs inputs

BEBT in HK$ million ® 7l Level 3 # 7l Level 3
AFEEFTE Fair value measurments

REYZE Investment properties

- X (F8) - Residential (Hong Kong) 139 154

- B (§8) — Commercial (Hong Kong) 973 829

1,112 983

REMENDFEE - RRETELBYEECET
MRS FHNEREE  UERLEGAEHMEE - It
S FELWEMRE  UBEREESSEBENIE
LB - ARG ERREYENFTAEINRRE -
MM EEFH AT -

The fair values of investment properties were assessed using the direct comparison method whereby
comparisons based on transactions on actual sales of comparable properties have been made.
Comparable properties with similar character, location, size, etc are analysed and carefully weighted
against all respective advantages and disadvantages of the properties in order to arrive at the fair

comparison of values.
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14 BEYE (48)
RBBHMEREANTABRRBASE  REHK
VE  BRRITAREBEERZZTENSFEHRTS
B1% o
SENBERENERERNEHABREEHE
B0 BROFEETTERINEAREE -
FRAKANGERDLE|EE o
RZO—RERZO—FEE  Z@AAFEBEFE
Bl 2 R IRE Y R o

15 §EATIRE
RZO—ARFEARA=+THEERTFHENT :

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont.)

For Level 3 properties, the most significant unobservable input is market unit rate, taking account

of location, size and pedestrian flow, etc.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels
as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

During the years of 2016 and 2015, there were no transfers of investment properties among the

three levels of fair value hierarchy classifications.

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Details of the joint ventures as of 30 June 2016 are as follows:

BB/ SEMA S EIR

HEAE
Name of entity

Place of business /
country of incorporation

Principal activities

EERAKREHMERA FERR
Authorised and Measurement
paid up capital method

I RAPREEERREMERAR

China Sports Lottery HKJC
Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd*
(“BJ CJV”)

EEESEREES
HKJC Equity Trust Fund

MEHE

MEHE

Stellar Performer Global Series

The Cayman Islands

RZO—AREXRA=Z+HR-ZO—EFERA=1+AH "
EEEA L RHEBRTEERMARA ANESERE
HBHAEIZANT - RZO—XRERZO—RF £
it R BT EERMERARANEERT S Z
mm- o
RAA=1+H &8 SEREEHERERE
EeRESFESHEFENERE LT ¢

REAREME (THE])
The People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”)

The Cayman Islands

RESEERR - RlEIIR
A A AR

information consultancy
RERS
investment in equities
REEBEBES

investment in debt securities

provision of computer technology,
technical training and business

ARB-EZE=1+8BRT &=
Equity

Renminbi (“RMB”)

200.2 million
TER =
n/a Equity
TER =
n/a Equity

As at 30 June 2016 and 2015, the ownership interest of the Group in BJ CJV was 90%. The Group
shared 40% of the results of BJ CJV in 2016 and 2015.

The effective percentages directly held by the Group, the Club and its related entities in Equity
Trust and Bond Trust as of 30 June were as follows:

REES Equity Trust

&% &% Bond Trust

HEET in HK$ million 2016 2015 2016 2015
BEESFE The Hong Kong Jockey Club 47.2% 45.6% 46.8% 45.4%
BEEESEREETESR The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 48.3% 49.2% 49.9% 50.7%
BEERESEETRINERGE The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Retirement Benefits Scheme 4.5% 5.2% 3.3% 3.9%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
+tA—H At 1 July 20,017 18,804
EE Injection 2,324 2,460
LEE Redemption (1,198) (1,756)
Fiit (&518) /%7 Share of (losses)/profits (550) 815
FHE 2 mikas/ (B5i8) Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) 564 (309)
B HRERE Currency translation differences (21) 3
~A=1+H At 30 June 21,136 20,017

*HERREXEA

* Unofficial English name




15 §EATIRE (K)
RIEGEATNEEAA=THIENEERE EXIRE

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

A summary of financial information of the joint ventures based on their management or audited

MEHN B ERRZENT ! accounts as of 30 June is as follows:
2016
bR BB 5 BT
BRAR REES BEBHEES ko)
BJ CJV Equity Trust Bond Trust Total
EmAw EmAw EmAL EmA
L Epaad BERASL BEBRBESL L Epaad
Group’s Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
EnE Income statement
Wi/ (8518) Income/(loss) 333 133 (641) (305) (650) (285) (958) (457)
S Expenses (195) (78) - - - - (195) (78)
e Depreciation (28) (11) - - - - (28) (11)
RS Uk & Interest income 5 2 - - - - 5 2
FEHiE Taxation expense (15) (6) - - - - (15) (6)
MREBRE/ (BE) Surplus/(deficit) after taxation 100 40 (641)  (305) (650) (285) (1,191)  (550)
HibZ2m (Fi8)/ W Other comprehensive (loss)/income - - (135) (4) 1,247 568 1,112 564
2mEWE/ (F58) #5 Total comprehensive income/(loss) 100 40 (776) (309) 597 283 (79) 14
EESEX Balance sheet
FREBEE Non-current assets
M  BRIBEREM Property, plant and equipment 111 81 - - - - 111 81
EEBIEERE Deferred tax asset 24 17 - - - - 24 17
A HERKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
[ Equities
EEBLED Listed in Hong Kong - - 1,316 621 - - 1,316 621
= Em Listed overseas - - 21,138 9,977 - - 21,138 9,977
BERES Debt securities
8™ Listed overseas - - - - 16,327 7,634 16,327 7,634
L Unlisted - - - - 4,628 2,169 4,628 2,169
HERENES Funds awaiting investment - - 394 186 585 275 979 461
THESHMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 411 188 411 188
MEEE Current assets
HittREEE Other current asset 8 6 - - - - 8 6
THESHMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 23 11 226 104 249 115
ySE-EER N Short-term deposits 223 163 - - - - 223 163
ReREESLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 148 108 - - - - 148 108
mENEELAE Total current assets 379 277 23 11 226 104 628 392
nEBEE Current liabilities
FEAFBR R R TR U R IE Creditors and receipts in advance (161) (117) - - - - (161)  (117)
THESHmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - (140) (65) (140) (65)
B EEERE Total current financial liabilities
(TEFES R (excluding trade and other
H{th 4T BRFAFNZE4R) payables and provisions) - - - - (140) (65) (140) (65)
FEREBEE Non-current liabilities
THESHmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - (486) (222) (486) (222)
353 258 22,871 10,795 21,551 10,083 44,775 21,136
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments - - - 7,726 - 5,499 - 13,225
REREAS Long-term investment portfolios - - - 3,069 - 4,584 - 7,653
- - - 10,795 - 10,083 - 20,878
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15 §EATHRAE (&) 15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

34

2015
bR BB 5 BT
BRAR REHES BEHES e
BJ CJV Equity Trust Bond Trust Total
SEIFEN SEFEN SEEFEN SEIFEN
G Epaad BERASL BEBRBESL L Epaad
Group’s Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
EnE Income statement
Wi Income 221 125 1,045 476 651 288 1,917 889
S Expenses (135) (55) - - - - (135) (55)
e Depreciation (64) (26) - - - - (64) (26)
R B Yz Interest income 7 3 - - - - 7 3
FRIEIRR Taxation credit 9 4 - - - - 9 4
BREL B R ER Surplus after taxation 38 51 1,045 476 651 288 1,734 815
Hih 2w/ (B5E8) Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - 188 84 (864) (388) (676) (304)
2mEWE/ (F58) #5 Total comprehensive income/(loss) 38 51 1,233 560 (213) (100) 1,058 511
EESEX Balance sheet
FREBEE Non-current assets
M  BRIBEREM Property, plant and equipment 113 99 - - - - 113 99
EEBIEERE Deferred tax asset 28 25 - - - - 28 25
A HERKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
[ Equities
EEBLED Listed in Hong Kong - - 1,810 826 - - 1,810 826
1w EH Listed overseas - - 19,856 9,064 - - 19,856 9,064
BERES Debt securities
g EH Listed overseas - - - - 14,729 6,722 14,729 6,722
L Unlisted - - - - 4,817 2,162 4,817 2,162
HERENES Funds awaiting investment = = 482 220 1,428 635 1,910 855
THESHMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 221 101 221 101
MEEE Current assets
HittREEE Other current assets 41 36 - - - - 41 36
THESHMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 161 74 161 74
ySE-EER N Short-term deposits 100 88 - - - - 100 88
ReREESLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 179 156 - - - - 179 156
mENEELAE Total current assets 320 280 - - 161 74 481 354
nEBEE Current liabilities
FEBR AR R T U R IE Creditors and receipts in advance (39) (33) - - - - (39) (33)
$TEEmIA Derivative financial instruments - - (4) ()] (152) (69) (156) (71)
B EEERE Total current financial liabilities
(FERESR (excluding trade and other
H{th 4T BRFAFNZE4R) payables and provisions) - - @) 2 (152) (69) (156) (71)
FEREBEE Non-current liabilities
THESHmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - (189) (87) (189) (87)
422 371 22,144 10,108 21,015 9,538 43,581 20,017
BRESRKRE Contingency Fund investments = = - 7,004 - 4,928 - 11,932
REKREAS Long-term investment portfolios - - - 3,104 - 4,610 - 7,714
- - - 10,108 - 9,538 - 19,646

BEQATNERESIISNERES A METY
ERANZES2NSE =+t (ZO—RF : Ao2Z=%

Nt) - EBRSHNMETFIHRIBLE (ZO0O—

HEF  RE) e

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rates of 4.37% for the joint ventures
under the Bond Trust (2015: 3.87%). Their weighted average maturities were 7 years (2015: 6 years).



15 EBAERE (&)

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

REES Equity Trust

&% &% Bond Trust

2016 2015 2016 2015
BTREUTIEEIE : Underlying investments were denominated
in the following currencies:
EV United States Dollars (“USD”) 67% 61% 100% 100%
BT Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) 7% 9% - -
HEE Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 7% 7% - -
EEE Korean Won (“KWR”) 3% 4% - -
875 Euro (“EUR”) 2% 2% - -
HibhE#s Other currencies 14% 17% - -
100% 100% 100% 100%
SENEEQARMEENITEESMIA Group’s derivative financial instruments in joint ventures
REES Equity Trust
BERESRE REBREEE
Contingency Fund Long-term investment kol
investments portfolios Total
&E a8E &E afE &E afE
BEET in HK$ million Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
EHINESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts 8 - 3 - 11 -
ZO—R~"EXRA=FH At 30 June 2016 8 - 3 - 11 -
AHWT : Analysed as:
TRENER D Current 8 - 3 - 11 -
EHINESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts - (1) - 1) - )
—O—&®EXRA=FH At 30 June 2015 - (1) - 1) - ()
AHWT : Analysed as:
TRENER D Current - (1) = (1) = @)
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15 EBAERE (&)

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

&% E £ Bond Trust
BRESRE RYREESE
Contingency Fund Long-term investment kol
investments portfolios Total
&E a8E &E afE &E afE
BEET in HK$ million Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
EHINESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts 31 (21) 28 (18) 59 (39)
HE Futures 21 (5) 20 (5) 41 (10)
e Options 1 (1) 1 (1) 2 2)
=5 Swaps 96 (119) 94 (117) 190 (236)
ZO—REXA=1H At 30 June 2016 149 (146) 143 (141) 292 (287)
AW : Analysed as:
TENER D Current 54 (34) 50 (31) 104 (65)
FERENE D Non-current 95 (112) 93 (110) 188 (222)
149 (146) 143 (141) 292  (287)
EHINESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts 9 21) 9 (20) 18 41)
HE Futures 1 7 1 (7) 2 (14)
e Options 1 (1) 1 (1) 2 ()
=5 Swaps 77 (50) 76 (49) 153 (99)
—O—EHFERA=1H At 30 June 2015 88 (79) 87 (77) 175 (156)
AHWT : Analysed as:
mENEB S Current 37 (35) 37 (34) 74 (69)
IEREN D Non-current 51 (44) 50 (43) 101 (87)
88 (79) 87 (77) 175 (156)

EEERE R ARFENERYESREMANIREE -

16 HREERE

There were no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the joint ventures.

16 CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
A ERKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
S Equities
EEBLm Listed in Hong Kong 1,609 2,386
w8 Em Listed overseas 188 137
1,797 2,523
BERE Alternative investments
L™ Unlisted 5,298 729
HERENES Funds awaiting investment 56 53
EEN Deposits 371 159
7,522 3,464

SEMENERNMETIERFRAES 2 THt
N(ZO—ERF : AAZTHNR) - KEFMISNE
AR EFRENESWIREEEREE A FEEES -
B AT E R IEFIFHRA=+7x8 (=0
—EHF @A) -

The deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 0.79% for the Group (2015: 0.46%).
The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment approximated their fair values.
The weighted average maturities of deposits were 26 days for the Group (2015: 4 days).



16 BREERE (F)

16 CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS (cont.)

2016 2015
ERESREUTIEERE Contingency Fund investments were denominated
in the following currencies:
ES UsbD 76% 30%
BT HKD 22% 70%
B EUR 2% -
100% 100%
17 RHIIRE4AE 17 LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
At ERKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
S Equities
ERELEM Listed in Hong Kong 626 1,050
8 Em Listed overseas 73 60
3 i Unlisted 44 44
743 1,154
BEXFS Debt securities
ERBLD Listed in Hong Kong 4 96
V=2 k) Listed overseas - 1,540
3 i Unlisted 78 78
82 1,714
BERE Alternative investments
3 b Unlisted 2,427 5,489
3,252 8,357
HFRENES Funds awaiting investment 22 24
EE N Deposits 763 658
4,037 9,039

SEEFNERRESZREFARNNETLESERFIZEAT
DPRZEBHELA(ZO—HF: AOZ=ZB=-)FF
MR EFRENESWIREEEREE N EEMES
MEEFNFRNMELIHRAZSH —F (=0
—HE =) o

The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 0.76% for the
Group (2015: 3.31%). The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment
approximated their fair values. The weighted average maturities of the deposits were 0.1 year for

the Group (2015: 3 years).

2016 2015
REOREASUTIIERINE : Long-term investment portfolios were denominated
in the following currencies:

Epv uUsD 72% 83%
BT HKD 24% 13%
ARHE RMB 4% 2%
/¢ EUR - 2%
100% 100%
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18 REAFERRIE
EHENSETEEERL AR S MERAR
ML RYEXFOFEMES  WEFEREE L
RZENEETAIFERFERUESEEE -

18 LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Long-term prepayments mainly included prepayments of rental for the land and property of Beijing
Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited which are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

19 EEFRHEE/ (BfE)
F RIS AE B — B i [ U 3 SE A BR AV IR FE T
BHEE/(BE) SEBWT :

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
The movement in deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) during the year without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as follows:

38

EERIK
BB
Employee
EEREEE Deferred tax Assets retirement Hith ko)
BEBT in HK$ million benefit cost Others Total
—O—&=%tHA—H At 1 July 2015 118 15 133
A/ (H18) Wk Credited/(charged) to income statement 10 6) 4
RAH M2 mE RS Credited to other comprehensive income 37 - 37
ZO—R~"EXRA=FH At 30 June 2016 165 9 174
—O—mMEER—H At 1 July 2014 92 18 110
A/ (H18) Wk Credited/(charged) to income statement 10 3) 7
RAH M2 mE RS Credited to other comprehensive income 16 - 16
—O—®FEXRA=FH At 30 June 2015 118 15 133
EITE
HBREE
Accelerated
EEREAE Deferred tax liabilities depreciation Hth ko)
BEBT in HK$ million allowances Others Total
—O-®E&+tA—H At 1 July 2015 (450) - (450)
(08)/BARGEE (Charged)/credited to income statement (124) 21 (103)
ZO—R~"EXRA=FH At 30 June 2016 (574) 21 (553)
—O-—mE+A—8 At 1 July 2014 (341) - (341)
HBak=x Charged to income statement (109) - (109)
—O—&EXRA=FH At 30 June 2015 (450) - (450)
2016 2015
BELEFEH EEMREH ELEFBH  BEMEH
&E affE &E aE
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
income tax income tax g income tax income tax “aEE
BEBT in HK$ million assets liabilities Total assets liabilities Total
WEl/ (GEEH) AVIEFE AT SR Deferred income tax
to be recovered/(settled)
ZR+T=EA#% after more than 12 months 123 (441) (318) 79 (366) (287)
RT=EAR within 12 months 51 (112) (61) 54 (84) (30)
174 (553) (379) 133 (450) (817)




20 RBEHES

20 DEBT SECURITIES PORTFOLIO

BEHBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
At ERKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BEXFS Debt securities
ERBLD Listed in Hong Kong 350 495
w8 Em Listed overseas 157 327
EET Unlisted - 187
507 1,009

SEENERESNMEFIERNZAT I 2=
B (ZO—RF: BHoZ=H_-=) KEFf#HE
WEKHESZNINEEIHRRIAZSEHEF (ZO—4&
Fi—F)e

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rate of 3.27% for the Group (2015:
3.23%). Their weighted average maturities were 0.5 year for the Group (2015: 1 year).

2016 2015
BRFBHFESUTIEETE Debt securities portfolios were denominated
in the following currencies:
AR RMB 92% 96%
EV UsD 8% 4%
100% 100%

21 BERRERRELREMESHEE

21.1 EFRREKIE
EENERRERRERFEESZE TS (ZO0—4
FAIZNT) LB TE  HfUHEME R
o ERREWKENRAEEEE N FEBEHEE

212 Hiim & E

21 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

21.1 Loans and receivables

76% of the loans and receivables were denominated in HKD for the Group (2015: 80%), the rest
of the balances were denominated in other currencies. The carrying amounts of loans and
receivables approximated their fair values.

21.2 Other current assets

BEHBT in HK$ million 2016 2015

HitRE&EE Other current assets
7E Inventories 221 223
TR Prepayments 283 147
504 370
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22 THEERMTE

22 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BE afE
BEET in HK$ million Assets Liabilities
EHINESH Foreign exchange forward contracts 14 (18)
=5 Swaps 1 (165)
ZO—REXA=1H At 30 June 2016 15 (183)
AHWT : Analysed as:
TENER D Current 15 (48)
IEREN D Non-current - (135)
15 (183)
EHNESH Foreign exchange forward contracts 21 ()
—O—-HEAA=+A At 30 June 2015 21 @)
AW : Analysed as:
TRENER D Current 21 (3)

23 EHERREERFLEEY

23.1 BHATERX

SENEHFRNMETIERINZAE2 23
AN (ZO—HF B Z2=&t=) - KENEH
FREREEEEAE N FEERS - MENETI9H
RH—B=1THB (ZO—HF : —FATHEAH) -

23 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23.1 Short-term deposits

The weighted average effective interest rates on short-term deposits were 1.89% for the Group
(2015: 2.73%). The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and
their weighted average maturities were 135 days for the Group (2015: 164 days).

2016 2015
EHERUTIEETE Short-term deposits were denominated
in the following currencies:
EV USsD 60% 42%
AR RMB 35% 57%
BT HKD 5% 1%
100% 100%




23 EHERRIALRIREZEY (&)
22RERRELEEY

SEZE B A=A UTHERNEFIGERFIZE
BEAZEHtLtHE(ZO—EHF o2 HT
+) e EEEFERNEREEERE A FEEES  mA
MEFEHRAE=+ A (ZO—FF:=+=H) -

23 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (cont.)

23.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average effective interest rates on deposits with maturities of less than three months
were 0.75% for the Group (2015: 1.07%). The carrying amounts of deposits approximated their
fair values and their weighted average maturities were 29 days for the Group (2015: 23 days).

2016 2015
ZBMAAR=EAUATHERUATIEETE Deposits with maturities of less than 3 months
were denominated in the following currencies:

BT HKD 68% 61%
AR RMB 18% 25%
E USD 14% 13%
BT AUD - 1%
100% 100%

BE-O—AEXA=tAHL > SENETHELD
AEGERRNRTEFOSERERBESLEYE
BEREE—THEEEBT (ZO—&RF : =B=FTHH
EBT)  UARBINE  USPEINESFHRE -
SENRSRRSEBYEE_TOE-TFTN\E
BBIWETES (ZO—HE = +=F—FN\HE
i) o WEREEEARRENEEYHE  FEH
ABIEE25 ©

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$515 million (2015:
HK$325 million) denominated in RMB which were held by certain subsidiaries with bank accounts
operating in the PRC where exchange controls apply.

Cash and cash equivalents included HK$2,418 million of customer funds for the Group (2015:
HK$2,318 million) that were matched by liabilities of an equal value as disclosed in note 25.

24 EHIER 24 SHORT-TERM LOANS

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
BRI ERK Unsecured loans 111 150
L ER RS HRITEBRER - AHER - £F81  The above were unsecured short-term revolving bank loans with maturities of six months and

AAARZZEN=ZZENHBENA=(ZO—FEF: @HZ
MEEN—ZHIETMN) - ERNEREEERELAFE
BEEE - BERUARBITE -
FANERFNEZTHALtAESBT (ZO—HEF:
NEEETT) °

interest rate was between 3.83% and 4.92% per annum (2015: between 4.92% and 5.04% per
annum). The carrying amounts of the loans approximated their fair values. The loans were
denominated in RMB.

The loan interest expense incurred for the year was HK$7 million (2015: HK$8 million).
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25 E5RHEMEMIRR

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

BEHBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
E S EMNFIRR Trade payables 5,114 4,605
H e IR R ERTFRIE Other payables and accruals 1,108 1,460

6,222 6,065

SENEZENRABE-TORE-—TN\EEETH
BERFER (ZO—HF : Zt=FB—FNEER
7T) e WEFREEFEAERERRELEYRAERRN
BHASEEESHE  FHEERNE28 - EEK
HAb BN IR R BT SR BRE B E R E A P EEM
5 KENE SR EMENRIRESTRET - BB
DZNTE(ZO—FF : Gz N\+H) LUETH
5 HERRUHEME BT -

26 SEEFIETE

Trade payables included HK$2,418 million of customer accounts’ deposits for the Group (2015:
HK$2,318 million). This was offset by an equivalent amount of customer funds held which was
included in cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in note 23. The carrying amounts of the trade
and other payables and accruals approximated their fair values. 87 % of the trade and other payables
and accruals were denominated in HKD for the Group (2015: 84%), the rest of the balances were

denominated in other currencies.

26 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
HitBBRIEEFASUKMRRERAC RN Other liabilities represented pension liabilities of the Group’s Scheme
SEERAERANFERRESEEWT : recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

which were determined as follows:
EEENATER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,507) (2,825)
ANKERRERE Present value of obligation 3,378 3,405
REMBEARRERATIRRESFEE Net pension liabilities in the

consolidated statement of financial position 871 580
RERAGEFIRESENREHERENT ¢ Reconciliation of the present value of

the defined benefit obligation was as follows:
+tA—H At 1 July 3,405 3,264
HIRE S ERENRITIRIE KA Current service cost net of employee contributions 137 136
B LA Interest cost 49 57
BHEE Remeasurement:
- HEEKRFAZS|HNEERE — Actuarial losses due to liability experience 36 31
- AMEEREREBEIBNEEEE — Actuarial losses due to financial assumptions 42 193
- EAO#THRREB I HNEE RS - Actuarial gains due to demographic assumptions - (32)
EREXTHER Actual benefits paid (291) (244)
RA=ZTHEMNENRESRE Present value of obligation at 30 June 3,378 3,405
FRFIEEEATFEEZBHNOT ! The movement in the fair value of Scheme assets

of the year was as follows:
+tA—H At 1 July 2,825 2,842
FE WA Interest income 40 50
BHEE Remeasurement:
- FFEEENER (K)/ BRITIRE — Return on Scheme assets (less)/greater than discount rate (146) 95
EEMHER Employer contributions 80 83
EXFTREF Benefits paid (291) (244)
Bt EEERNNITHRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets (1) (1)
NE=THWEEIEEAFER Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2,507 2,825




26 SEEFIETE ()

26 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (cont.)

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
ERERFEERWRBLT ¢ The amounts recognised in the income statement were as follows:

IR B AR A AR AR Current service cost 137 136
FRERMABNFERSKA Net interest cost on net defined benefit liabilities 8 7
BifBIEERINTERER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets 1 1
FFABIRARWAAEE (FiEE11) Total included in staff costs (note 11) 146 144
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015

EEEWREREINERTEZENT ¢

HEEERE B 5| HNEEREER
E I BRR BB S| R ERE
HAO#ZEHRRZ 8 5| B E s

HrELENEERERER
SFEEENERE/ (B) MIR=E

ERHWEREANENTELE

Remeasurement effects recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income were as follows:

Actuarial losses due to liability experience 36 31
Actuarial losses due to financial assumptions 42 193
Actuarial gains due to demographic assumptions - 32)
Actuarial losses on liabilities arising during period 78 192
Return on Scheme assets less/(greater) than discount rate 146 (95)

Remeasurement effects recognised

in the statement of comprehensive income 224 97
BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
EREREZNRERMBA (HEE11) Defined benefit cost recognised in income statement (note 11) 146 144
E2HWRREANETTTELE Remeasurement effects recognised

in the statement of comprehensive income 224 97
RERBFBA Defined benefit cost 370 241

(a) 7= @7 5T 8 rY 45 Bh 2 46 R [ B 1 ke
AEGRANGEURENRREFS > RUEERNK
Bif - ERRBERASVREFHAEREGTE  aHRE
H—FBMEFIE - REBFGEITERATABK
EE -

RAERATEIRE —EETLTHRY - WIRE (B
SR RS EIRG)) WRESM - £ GaRFlE BT
2 (B%) RO WRETHRAEARRRTE -5
SRSHAEEAT RN —EE -

RERERBAGEETRZANEEKR  BFEH
BAREREAMTENRES (F) » URIBERERF
STEEERMAES  REAREETNER - Bt &
BEFEAIZE19% (2011) E4ARFTHMEE LR
RER (EBRGBRERRBEES) REBE145MH
WRIEESER 9T BEARRERRETE -

REREANE B DEL KB ETRSE (M) AR
AFIEE  ZARBEEERERAFENGEG
A

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks

The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme that provides lump sum benefits based on a multiple of
a member’s final salary and years of service upon the member’s retirement, death, disability or
leaving service. The Scheme has been closed to new employees.

The Scheme was established under a trust arrangement. It is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSQO”), and is an exempted scheme under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes (Exemption) Regulation. The Club is the sole employer participating in
the Scheme.

Based on the relevant clauses of the Trust Deed of the Scheme, the Club may utilise the surplus
of the Scheme, if any, to reduce future employer contributions as recommended by the Scheme’s
actuary. As a result, the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum
funding requirements of HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme.

The Scheme is administered by HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited who acts as the
trustee to the Scheme.
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26 SEEFIETE ()

(a) FRERFIFTBIR SR R ABRR E Bk (%)
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(c) RERFIGIBIEENER

26 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (cont.)

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks (cont.)

The Scheme typically expose the Club to the following key risks:

(i) Investment risk

Strong investment returns tend to increase the fair value of Scheme assets and therefore improve
the Scheme’s financial position as measured by the net defined benefit liability/asset, whilst poor
or negative investment returns tend to weaken the position.

The Scheme assets are invested in a diversified portfolio of equities, fixed income securities and
cash, hedge funds, and multi-assets covering major geographical locations around the world. The
diversification among asset classes and geographical locations helps to reduce the concentration
of risk associated with the Scheme investments.

(ii) Interest rate risk
The DBO is calculated using a discount rate based on market bond yields. A decrease in the bond
yields will increase the DBO.

(iii) Salary risk
The DBO is calculated with reference to the future salaries of members because the Scheme’s
benefits are salary-related. Salary increases that are higher than expected will increase the DBO.

(b) Determination of economic benefit available

As mentioned in note 26 (a), determination of economic benefit available is not required because
the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum funding requirements
of HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme.

(c) Scheme asset information

BEHBT in HK$ million 2016 2015

STEIEERRE Scheme assets were comprised as follows :

BRE Equities 1,287 51% 1,574 56%

EEEHFRES Fixed income securities and cash 775 31% 848 30%

HHES Hedge funds 330 13% 406 14%

ZREE Multi-assets 116 5% - -
2,508 100% 2,828 100%

REBABREXRRMEEELIE  SEHHFEE
ERBEY

(d) EXHFHEEBRRBURE ST

The long-term strategic asset allocations of the Scheme are set and reviewed by the Club on a
regular basis.

(d) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis

BABERERAOT : The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

2016 2015
R=E Discount rate 0.8% 1.5%
REFSIERILE Long-term salary increase rate 4.0% 4.5%



26 HRERAEE (&)
(d) EXEERB R ESHT ()
RZO—AREXA=+AH > EMBELH/THES
ZEHR-H EHMAMEUERZIGEFTTENE
AT AEEFFERAESENATERE KBS
B/ EBMA R AEES 22— BEtREIZ—EHN
(ZO—EHF . B2Z2—H/\) -
RZO—XREXA=+H  ZERBFS LA/ TH
BO TR _—H EHMAETERZGHESFTE
HWERT @ RERAEFARESTINATER &
RN/ BLEIZ—EBN (ZO—FHF B2 Z2—
ZhA) o

(e) & & R HE RBUR A Hi i
BARAHFERKE (RRRITERASRKER
S THRBITHAL) HERM - REFTEHRE » &
ENHRDEEERFEUEENEOLLEE - B
HER RS 2R (BSERNEBRD) R E - Bt
LEEEMETESHEMERE - AERFFIESN=
O—AFtA-—HETRE-RESMGE"-

(f) FEFHEERK
EEEF ZO—tFNEFNB/LFAEERT (=
O—A~E:tFThEEET) -

(o) REBFITEIFIRIEEEMBHER
RERHFEMAEEFEE—O—~FAA=TH
BT IIBRAEASEAF (ZO-—HF 1
) e

TRIBRRECEKANEERRBERTE - A
B SR AHEFBARE (BE M A REESR
BRHFLTEENERN)  LUE-TBTRRAERFIFE
FREEEENEIHER -

26 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (cont.)
(d) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis (cont.)
At 30 June 2016, if the discount rate had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of the DBO would have decreased/increased by 1.7% and 1.8% respectively
(2015: 1.8%).

At 30 June 2016, if long-term salary had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of the DBO would have increased/decreased by 1.8% (2015: 1.9%).

(e) Description of funding arrangements and policies

The costs of benefits are jointly funded by the Club and the members (existing Executives of the
Executive Sub-Scheme only). Members’ contributions are based on a fixed percentage of basic
salary as stipulated by the Rules of the Scheme. The Club’s contributions are determined with
reference to the funding valuation carried out by the Scheme’s actuary in accordance with the
ORSO requirements. The last funding valuation of the Scheme was carried out as at 1 July 2015.

(f) Expected contributions
The Group expects to contribute approximately HK$76 million for the year 2017 (2016: HK$79
million).

(9) Maturity profile of DBO

The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2016 was 6.6 years (2015: 6.8 years).
To further illustrate the maturity profile of the DBO, the following table sets out the expected

benefit payments (including benefits attributable to estimated future employee service and salary)

from the Scheme based on the adopted actuarial assumptions.

AX TR EFFE (FEET)

fHE R BT NES Number of years after valuation date Expected benefit payments in HK$ million
—fF 1 308
—F 2 353
=% 3 338
PO 4 331
hE 5 313
RETHF 6to 10 1,278
T—FHUE 11 and over 1,763
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27 f#iE 27 RESERVES
REBMRHE
ZRf##E  Investment & 5

Accumulated  revaluation Exchange Febo)
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve reserve Total
—O—HZtA—H At 1 July 2015 27,458 1,258 129 28,845
FRIL R A FRRES B Net deficit after taxation (298) - - (298)
ERTEAES Transfer to Contingency Fund (4,642) (624) - (5,266)
B HBERE Currency translation differences - - (166) (166)

AHHENBEENEGER

AHHENBEEHERBERN
SRBREEH D |BARER

BB B RRAEBNEHTE

Frit & N RN E 2 E S

—O—mMELA—H
R B TR
EHRTEHEAES
EETRRES
B HIBERE

AHHENBEENEGALR

AHHEMBEEHNERN
SRBKEEH D |BARER

BB B RRAEBNEHTE

FritaE N RN EMEHEEE

ZO—HFARA=1+H

REERLARSRE  FEASEEAREEER
FEFFENGRL B 2 TRAEERSRAES B
ERARENEREIEMERNED 2H +RIE -
EEBBLABESEARERMAER - TANEHERS
B8~ IBINEARRIEF T o
RZO—AREAA=1H  AERBKABLHA
FTHEERL (ZO—HF : IFEAEER)

Deficit on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - (146) - (146)

Realised gains on disposal and impairment
of available-for-sale financial assets

reclassified to income statement - (148) - (148)
- (294) - (294)
Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations, net of tax (187) - - (187)
Share of other comprehensive income
of joint ventures - 230 - 230
At 30 June 2016 22,331 570 (37) 22,864
At 1 July 2014 26,052 1,082 111 27,245
Net surplus after taxation 2,249 = = 2,249
Transfer to Contingency Fund (718) - - (718)
Transfer to Development Fund (44) - - (44)
Currency translation differences - - 18 18

Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - 388 - 388

Realised gains on disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets

reclassified to income statement - (52) - (52)
- 336 - 336
Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations, net of tax (81) - - (81)
Share of other comprehensive loss
of joint ventures - (160) - (160)
At 30 June 2015 27,458 1,258 129 28,845

The Group is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit from PRC entities as reported in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC to the statutory reserve fund
until the balance of such fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserve fund
can only be used upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset against accumulated losses,
to increase capital or to expand the business.

As at 30 June 20186, the statutory reserve fund amounted to HK$54 million (2015: HK$45 million).



28 HHRES

28 CONTINGENCY FUND

RESHRE
He#8  Investment
Fund  revaluation Feko)
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
—O—&=%tHA—H At 1 July 2015 14,089 1,307 15,396
e RE Transfer from Reserve 4,642 624 5,266
AR HENKEENERIE Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - 221 221
At EKE E HERBERD Realised gains on disposal and impairment of
EERWREHHBRAMER available-for-sale financial assets reclassified
to income statement - (470) (470)
- (249) (249)
Frit & & ARMEMEEKE Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures - 334 334
ZO—AREXA=TH At 30 June 2016 18,731 2,016 20,747
—O—mMEER—H At 1 July 2014 13,371 1,273 14,644
BERESRENRE Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 231 - 231
Frib & & A TaF Share of profits of joint ventures 487 - 487
718 - 718
AHHENKEENEHRER Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - 240 240
Al E R E E HE R Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
SRR NRBH S ERARERER financial assets reclassified to income statement - (57) (57)
- 183 183
it & & ARMEMEEEE Share of other comprehensive loss of joint ventures - (149) (149)
—O—REAXNA=TH At 30 June 2015 14,089 1,307 15,396
20 BERESE 29 DEVELOPMENT FUND
RES LG
H&e#8  Investment
Fund  revaluation Feko)
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
—O—&=%tHA—H At 1 July 2015 1,185 13 1,198
AHtHEMBEENEhEE Deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets - (13) (13)
Al E R K E E HE RRER Realised losses on disposal of available-for-sale
EEREBEEHBERANREER financial assets reclassified to income statement - 4 4
= 9) 9)
ZO—R~"EXRA=FH At 30 June 2016 1,185 4 1,189
—O—MWELHA—H At 1 July 2014 1,141 2 1,143
R Transfer 44 - 44
A HENKEENEHRER Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets - 11 11
—O—REAXNA=T1H At 30 June 2015 1,185 13 1,198

BRRESHNIKEE - SIARBKREASZR -

The financial assets of the Development Fund are included in long-term investment portfolios.
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30 FEREMERME
30.1 BRBIRATA BRI E KRB EERF

30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
30.1 Reconciliation of surplus before taxation to net cash generated from operations

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
HIBRFLIE AT B f Surplus before taxation 266 2,810
it &% ATER/CaFl) Share of losses/(profits) of joint ventures 550 (815)
HERHHEMKEENRER Surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets (55) (297)
iR B s Dividend income (93) (266)
F B Ui Interest income (137) (218)
FEXZH Interest expense 7 8
PTESBMIANFEE/ () Net losses/(gains) of derivative financial instruments 215 (13)
HEREYERER Gain on disposal of investment properties (179) (51)
HEME - RERSEMEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 5
W - RIERBMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,546 1,230
REYENE Depreciation of investment properties - 1
At SN K EERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 296 -
EEESEH Movement in working capital
BFERD/ (3ghm) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 3 4)
BRI EWGRIEIE N Increase in loans and receivables (16) (120)
FEATFRIEE AN Increase in prepayments (137) (22)
FE{FBRFRIE 0/ CRIZ>) Increase/(decrease) in creditors 331 (503)
FEWFRIEE A/ ORkA>) Increase/(decrease) in receipts in advance 45 (82)
REFEAFIE ($B) /B (Increase)/decrease in long-term prepayments (14) 31
RIERFIFTEIE M Increase in defined benefit scheme 67 61
EETBMEENRS Cash generated from operations 2,695 1,755

30.2 HittEXIREHE
BEZO—AFAA=THILEFE  KENAHHEE
BB EEREEBRER-BATAEEET - BE=0
—hFANA=TRLEFE  WEEERE -

31 KiE

31.1 EARKIE

REHMIAK - CFTLANEREEEENERZEE
SHEEREEET (ZO—HE  +HEBE—FAE
BHET) o

31.2 FAE&IE
RABA=1TH  BEFTHEMLEBNRE A
BAXNNREESEENT

30.2 Other significant non-cash item

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the impairment loss of available-for-sale financial assets for
the Group was HK$296 million. For the year ended 30 June 2015, no such impairment was
made.

31 COMMITMENTS

31.1 Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for but not provided for at the end of the reporting period amounted
to HK$3,005 million (2015: HK$1,516 million).

31.2 Lease commitments
As at 30 June, the total future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases were as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015

preieal Buildings
R—FR Within one year 99 106
REZZERIFR In the second to fifth year inclusive 100 137
RERFE After the fifth year 25 26
224 269
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33 HAMEALZRS
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32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme and a defined contribution scheme. Members of
both schemes are full-time employees of the Group. Both schemes are registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and administered by independent trustees. The
Group also participates in a master trust MPF scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is operated by two independent service providers.

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Club is related to the Trust, The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited
(“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) as the Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees
of the Trust and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS.

The following transactions were carried out by the Group with the joint ventures and related
parties, except for those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements:

33.1 Management expenses
During the year, the Group recharged management expenses of HK$102 million (2015: HK$80
million) to the Trust for provision of administrative and support services.

33.2 Key management compensation

The Hong Kong Jockey Club is governed by a Board of Stewards with assistance from a Board of
Management. The Stewards are responsible for the overall policy and direction of the Group and
its funds as a whole, and have the power to effect and carry out the objects of the Group. The
Board of Management is responsible for the operational management of the Group and is overseen
by the Board of Stewards. To align with the disclosures of other major institutions in Hong Kong,
key management, consisting of the Board of Stewards and the Board of Management which
comprises the Chief Executive Officer, ten Executive Directors (2015: nine) and no Director (2015:
one), are detailed on pages 2, 14 and 15 of the Annual Report.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year
under review. No Steward had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any
transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s business.

The Board of Management’s remuneration consists of the following three components:

(a) Basic compensation
Basic compensation consists of base salary, housing and other allowances and benefits in kind.

(b) Performance-related compensation
This represents discretionary payments depending on individual performance and the performance
of the Group.

(c) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits relate to the Group’s contribution to retirement funds or gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions. For purposes of meaningful comparison, gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions are disclosed on an accrual basis, notwithstanding the contractual
entitlement and date of payment.

EEZEEXREFRNFHFMMOT : The remuneration for the Board of Management during the year was as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015

HINE < Basic compensation 71 63

BERFEH AN E Performance-related compensation 30 28

RIREF Retirement benefits 18 15
119 106
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33 HFFEALTZES ()
333 T EEEEBHM (&)

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont.)
33.3 Key management compensation (cont.)

(c) BIk#EF (&) (c) Retirement benefits (cont.)

FMRBIMNT The remuneration fell in the following bands:

A Number of individuals 2016 2015
SN AR Bl Remuneration bands

4,000,001 8T T

4,000,001 87T %5,000,00078 7T
5,000,001 /87T % 6,000,000 7T
6,000,001 7T % 7,000,00078 7T
7,000,001 & 7T % 8,000,00078 7T
8,000,001 87T % 9,000,00078 7T
9,000,001;& 7T = 10,000,000 7T
11,000,001 7T = 12,000,000 7T
12,000,001 7T = 13,000,000 7T
21,000,001 87T £ 22,000,000 7T
22,000,001 87T £ 23,000,000 7T

RIS SN EEEEEHE

34 MBRMRER
34.1 B AR E =
EENRETEE (BEUYALEATNRE) AZES
FENSBERE  TSRR (EFEEEAE - REE
wKEREAZER)  ABESRBREEERR - &£
B RERGEETE - ETHEERTIS R UER
g - BNEREREYEENERBNEETF
& EEFEATESRTE  USBRAEERS
o Tk o

SENETEMBEE  BREEFER B85 RER
HithZHERE HESEESIRBYSEESKEE
TR o

SEERIREEENER —REBESSHK
HREBREERERIES @ ETRREE - RER
HIRiES] 0 BIEREREET SR —D - £E
RIESEESHRERE  WENESITERSRiE
B METRERAREE -

(a) 158 B

() EHmpEE
E¥RARERERUMTENRERR S FAE
RHBERRNEE - Mol KEENER ©

EENEERBBEFTEUBT  EXTRARY

FTE o BB HItINERBR AR AE
BEMY - SEESENARKEEE - K2 ERAE
IR BBNBERR  REMPEROELFT
T HBRMEMER - DEERRMBEZ T
WIREREFREME

Below HK$4,000,001 1 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 1 -
HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 1 4
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 3 =
HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 2 1
HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 3 3
HK$11,000,001 to HK$12,000,000 - 1
HK$12,000,001 to HK$13,000,000 1 =
HK$21,000,001 to HK$22,000,000 =
HK$22,000,001 to HK$23,000,000 1 -
13 13
Key management who left the Club 2 2
11 11

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

34.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s investment activities including investments in joint ventures, expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity
risk and credit risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain
risk exposures.

The Group’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Treasury Department of the Club and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Treasury Department of the Club under investment policies
and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Finance and General Purposes Committe.
Investment constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions
and guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund to control risks of
the investments.

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating
to investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in HKD, USD or RMB. The HKD
is pegged to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The
majority of RMB holdings are to meet future committed charitable donations and core operational
requirements in the PRC. The remaining currency exposure arises from globally diversified
investments in equities and bonds.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(a) Market risk (cont.)

(i) Currency risk (cont.)
The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major
currencies had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus would have increased/decreased
as follows:

2016 2015

FRABRBE FRBRFLE

BN R BERR R

0/ R 20/ CRid)

EEWIZETY Increase/ EEWIRTS Increase/

B LEIRE (decrease) B LLIEE (decrease)

#3%/8855  on post-tax #%%/%55  on post-tax

If currency  surplus and If currency  surplus and

strengthened/ equity for strengthened/ equity for

BBET in HK$ million weakened by the year weakened by the year
AR RMB 5% 90/(90) 5% 133/(133)
®Z#E EUR 5% 2/(2) 5% 6/(6)
HEE GBP 5% 1/(1) 5% (2)/2
H JPY 5% (6)/6 5% 7/(7)
BT AUD 5% - 5% 2/(2)

(i) IREE R

EEKAREEERZERSBMSIBEEN
Ek - HRBREBETHK  ESRERENEER
TR IUEERZERZERER  SLRE
TSP ERRNRAN AT HHERBEEET o
REFHA  BREHEERTANER LA/
THRES2E  EHMAEIERZHEFTE
WIERT  SENEZSEREREN D FEE
SBMGM/ RO AEBATEEERBT (ZO0—&
FLEBE-TESR) -

(i) FJ 3 /2
FERABRERDSHEEE M BSEENE
B 2AAFEEFXRRBREESRENRE
B o AFEEFERERIIETISRRES - 5|13
PEEEERFEBNER - B REFZR KA
EMEFEEE  SIHUKEEARRSREY
BRENER - BEREEEEANTTERE » T
URIREAZSEAFEERRESREFIRRAR -

REFHR  ARFIREERLT  SRIRG
ME+EE  EHMAEIEEZIGEFTEN
BRT  SEFANBRBERSEEANTER
EBT (ZO—RFE  AF—HEBT)  MER
WREREEENRZEE FAM Y —E—T=
BEBT (ZO—HF : —BNATAEEET) °

EEEBRKMEEIBERAESRENRERE
EETSRE -  E¥EBEBEERBT/ XL/
ARBHERERER T RS o £EE A EE R
BEEMSIBWERER  TEEBUEHSHMAR
BAENEEETER - ZRREEEAR - BIEB
RAMBATHERF S RBMES T2 REAR D BV ELE
FLURE - FIRERAE - BIEBHIRT EELRRIES
REBENZENEERFE T ARES -

(ii) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in equity prices. The Group is exposed
to equity price risk as the value of its equity investments will decline if equity prices fall. These
investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets in the consolidated statements
of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
5% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s equity would have increased/
decreased by HK$695 million (2015: HK$710 million) as a result of the changes in fair value of
its equity investment.

(iii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can
be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial
asset will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both
fair value and cash flow interest rate risks as the Group has significant investments that are
interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there
had been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus for the year would have been HK$45 million higher (2015:
HK$51 million). The Group’s equity would have been approximately HK$213 million lower (2015:
HK$189 million) in response to the general increase in interest rates.

The Group controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-HKD/USD/RMB
exposure. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s China operations is
managed primarily through forward contracts and borrowings denominated in RMB. Equity price
risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and by securities.
Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing across a
spectrum of fixed and floating rate instruments.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as they
fall due. In addition, the Group may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close to
fair value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the
amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements can be met.

The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Group
as at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual maturity dates.
The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2016 2015
ZEARUT =@AE—F =EAFUT =EAZ—%F
Upto >3 months —FHE fLk) Upto >3 months —FHE ko)
BEET in HK$ million 3 months to1year Over 1 year Total 3 months to1year Over1year Total
FOTEBBER Non-derivative
financial liabilities

THEER Short-term loans 111 - - 111 150 - - 150

FEATBRFR Creditors 5,630 503 - 6,133 5,407 553 = 5,960
LURRREELEN Net-settled derivative

PTERBERE financial liabilities 28 18 387 433 26 5 87 118

5,769 521 387 6,677 5,683 558 87 6,228

RZO—R"EARA=TH  EEMFENAFRED
MNEGHREREEBELEAN\THE—T_88S
T (ZO—HE  ATABNTLEEBT) - T
HEFEZ-O—~"FAA=1THLEE=O—HERX
A=tTHLENAFREHRMNESHIEL DT - BLS
NG IRBERLEE - WIREBRTEHNEE A &S EREH
PRAG] - TRAEENRBEASHRITERSRE -
AR E MR R FTPIMEREEE (BHE) RE -

As at 30 June 2016, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts held by the Group was HK$8,412 million (2015: HK$6,987 million). The table below
analyses the Group’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30 June 2016 and
2015 that would be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash
flows, which are different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

2016 2015
Z@ARUAT =BAZE—F =BAEUT =BAZ—%F

Upto >3 months —FHE wE Upto >3 months —FHE ko)

BEBT in HK$ million 3 months to1year Over 1 year Total 3 months to1year Over1year Total
EHNESH Foreign exchange

forward contracts
piiitesl Outflows (7,596) (746) (70) (8,412) (5,974) (1,003) (10) (6,987)
A Inflows 7,623 746 70 8,439 5,948 1,022 10 6,980
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing
to perform its contractual obligations in full when due. It arises mainly from the Group’s deposit
placements, debt securities and derivative transactions.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification. Deposits are only placed with financial institutions with good credit standing. Credit
limits are established to control the overall exposure to each authorised counterparty based on its
credit ratings and financial strength. Counterparty credit exposures are measured according to the
risk nature of financial products involved in the transaction.

(i) Exposure to credit risk
As at 30 June 2016 and 2015, the Group’s and Club’s maximum exposure to the credit risk of
financial assets excluding cash on hand as defined in note 2.9 approximated their carrying
amounts in the consolidated statements of financial position.

(ii) Financial assets that were past due but not impaired
As at 30 June 2016, the trade receivables included in loans and receivables that were past due
but not determined to be impaired were HK$21 million for the Group (2015: HK$76 million). The
overall impact of trade receivables on the consolidated financial statements is insignificant
because the Group’s principal businesses are transacted in cash with customers.

34.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to
— provide a variety of world-class sporting entertainment to the community, while making
contributions in the form of duties, taxes and charitable donations, and
— support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group monitors its capital which is same as the total equity shown in its consolidated
statement of financial position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community
in the form of donations through the Trust.

34.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in
which any significant input is not based on observable market data.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on quotes
from market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most
significant input is market interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on information
derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers
and considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

(a) The following tables present the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that were measured
at fair value as at 30 June. See note 14 for disclosures of fair value measurement of the
investment properties.

2016 2015
FER| Al 2 &5l 3 g 501 &l 2 &7l 3 R
BEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
ERESKRE Contingency Fund
investments
AR EMEEE Available-for-sale
financial assets
BRE Equities 1,797 - - 1,797 2,523 - - 2,523
SERE Alternative investments - - 5,298 5,298 = = 729 729
REKREAS Long-term investment
portfolios
A EMEEE Available-for-sale
financial assets
BRE Equities 699 - 44 743 1,110 - 44 1,154
EBES Debt securities 82 - - 82 230 1,484 - 1,714
BERE Alternative investments - - 2,427 2,427 = = 5,489 5,489
BEEFEHES Debt securities portfolio
AR EMEEE Available-for-sale
financial assets
B S Debt securities 507 - - 507 1,009 = - 1,009
Hithi & Other investments
TEEmMIA Derivative financial
instruments - (168) - (168) - 18 - 18
3,085 (168) 7,769 10,686 4,872 1,502 6,262 12,636

KENBRRRNEHBRNBAABRBCRER
B - BRAFEESERBINEAREL -
RZO—XRERZO—LF  EEE=FEQFE
{ERT AR Bl IE A o

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the years of 2016 and 2015, there were no transfers between the three levels of fair value
hierarchy classifications for the Group.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(b) The movements of the Group’s balance of the assets and liabilities measured at fair value

based on Level 3 were as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2016 2015
+tA—H At 1 July 6,262 5,693
EUTHRERNRE/ (B518) 258 Total gains/(losses) recognised in
LVEnE. Income statement 127 34
2HENEE Statement of comprehensive income (48) 366
BBA Purchases 1,789 560
HE Sales (361) (391)
~A=1+H At 30 June 7,769 6,262
FRFTARERIEIERFIRER Total gains for the year included in income statement and
REBREAS BB LEEE presented in surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios 127 34

EBBRESANEEREERNFATARER
WHERSRERRIKREAS BN EAE

(c) ZO—AREAA=Z+HRZO—FZENAZTF
H & s ERAN2A 89 2 FEEFE ARG E 7 IT R
ANSEUT :

Total gains for the year included in income statement for assets
and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period and
presented in surplus from securities investments and

long-term investment portfolios

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements within Level 2 as at

30 June 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

f-tic) fRERTS ERBASH
Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
B ERE/EE
Financial assets/liabilities
BHESEH FRAESRE IR
Forward contracts on bonds Discounted cash flow Discount rate
EHIMNESH FRAESRE ABRER
Foreign exchange forward contracts Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates
HiRE HOR-EFRAEEERR EX - RRRKIE
Options Black-Scholes model Exchange rates, interest rates and volatility levels
=5 FRAESRE ABRER - MERIEH=E
Swaps Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates, interest rates and

swap rates
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)
(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

within Level 3 as at 30 June 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

BANSEA BB EFEIT :

ERic) fEERHT BERELEERASH 8 (IREF19)

Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)

MREE/8&

Financial assets/liabilities
EEESRE EEFE" i i
Real estate fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
REREESRE EEFE" i i
Private equity fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
HAHAESRE EEFE" i i
Hedge fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
ZREERE EEFE" EA TEA
Multi-assets investments Net asset value* n/a n/a

ELRBIIBBAUHRALFEFRTSETE
B - BB RANEEDRESESERRRNER
ESHENEBRRENERAABERSELLE
HMEETEE  KERHFHREEFEARSRE
AT -

e RZO—ANENA=Z+HRZO—FENA=F
H it fEFFET B ol B L 2N P BB BAR o

*

The investments classified as level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded in an active
market. These have been valued based on information derived from individual fund reports, or
audited reports received from respective fund managers and considering other relevant factors if
deemed necessary. The Group has determined that the reported net asset values represent a fair

value of the captioned investments.

(e) At 30 June 2016 and 2015, no non-financial assets or liabilities were carried at fair value.



35 BEUBRARRHEED

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE CLUB
BEMBRTR Statement of financial position of the Club
~A=tAH at 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million FftzE Note 2016 2015
FREBEE Non-current assets
Y - REREM Property, plant and equipment 8,084 7,481
REYZE Investment properties 1 1
B ARIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,117 1,140
EENTRE Investments in joint ventures 15,787 14,529
HRESRE Contingency Fund investments 7,522 3,464
REIREAS Long-term investment portfolios 2,789 6,295
REFFENFIE Long-term prepayment 67 =
35,367 32,910
MENEE Current assets
BRERES Debt securities portfolio 507 1,009
BB AR EMNER Loans to subsidiaries 1,676 1,676
ERREWGE Loans and receivables 272 271
HittREEE Other current assets 239 252
FEW B B A T HRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,050 1,827
PTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments 13 21
EEER Short-term deposits 1,966 1,577
ReREESLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 4,012 4,292
10,735 10,925
mEaE Current liabilities
B 5 R HMESIR Trade and other payables (4,233) (4,210)
FE R IE Receipts in advance (111) (106)
FEAFF BB A R RYFRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (5,482) (5,185)
REAFEHAE Current income tax liabilities (46) (33)
$TEEmIA Derivative financial instruments (16) (3)
(9,888) (9,537)
MENEEFEE Net current assets 847 1,388
FEREBEE Non-current liabilities
REFSHAR Deferred income tax liabilities (308) (237)
RERFIFTE Defined benefit scheme (871) (580)
(1,179) 817)
35,035 33,481
&t Reserves 35 (a) 17,278 21,111
ERES Contingency Fund 35 (b) 17,757 12,370
ERAE Total equity 35,035 33,481
) Simon SO Ip
EHR Anthony W K Chow
Ak Stewards
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35 BEUBRARRHEED (H)

(a) EERBEED

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE CLUB (cont.)
(a) Reserve movement of the Club

REEMFHB
2Rf#fE  Investment
Accumulated  revaluation Fetcl
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve Total
—O—&=%tHA—H At 1 July 2015 20,306 805 21,111
MRBIB A FEERER Net surplus after taxation 2,157 - 2,157
ERTEAES Transfer to Contingency Fund (5,012) (624) (5,636)
A ERKEENSRER Deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets - (146) (146)
At EKE E HERBERD Realised gains on disposal and impairment
EERWREHHBRAMER of available-for-sale reclassified
to income statement - (21) (21)
- (167) (167)
MR E BRI R BN EBNEHNE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations, net of tax (187) - (187)
—O—-~EXAZ+H At 30 June 2016 17,264 14 17,278
—O—mMEER—H At 1 July 2014 19,814 459 20,273
MRBIB AR ER Net surplus after taxation 804 - 804
ERTEAES Transfer to Contingency Fund (231) - (231)
AHHENKEENEHRER Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets = 398 398
Al E R E E HE R Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
SRR NRBH S ERARERER financial assets reclassified to income statement - (52) (52)
- 346 346
MR E BRI R BN EBNEHNE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations, net of tax (81) = (81)
—O—EHFERA=1H At 30 June 2015 20,306 805 21,111




35 BEUBRARRHEED (H)

(b) FERREEEH

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE CLUB (cont.)
(b) Contingency Fund movement of the Club

REEMFHB
H&e#8  Investment
Fund  revaluation Febo)
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
—O—&=%tHA—H At 1 July 2015 11,906 464 12,370
EEAEE Transfer from Reserve 5,012 624 5,636
A HENKEENEHRER Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets - 221 221
At EKE E HERBERD Realised gains on disposal and impairment of
EERWREHHBRAMER available-for-sale financial assets reclassified
to income statement - (470) (470)
- (249) (249)
ZO—R~"EXRA=FH At 30 June 2016 16,918 839 17,757
—O—mMEER—H At 1 July 2014 11,675 281 11,956
ERESRENRE Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 231 - 231
AHHENKEENEHRER Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets - 240 240
Al E R E E HE R Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
SRR NRBH S ERARERER financial assets reclassified to income statement - (57) (57)
- 183 183
—O—&®EXRA=FH At 30 June 2015 11,906 464 12,370
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FEBAE
RZO—7A"FARA=TH  FSENTEMBARERE
BERENEREAL
TEEY ERARMBRBRA/ EHES B G
GEEBAMKY  FE2EHEN
BRHOBRAE] :
BEEEEREEERARA REBFEYER —fEET 100
BEEERREEERAA KERMELER =EET 100
EREERFERAA RERNEFRSHEE —BBEBT 100
ETEREEHARAA" SEEEFEYENHERLRE —BET 100
BEERESE (K8) BRAA" ERETRABRGFEINEEA =tEx 100
BBREERA EEEERBRENER —TEBR 100
AR EHEEEERAR BEEENERREERA R FTERENER —8ET 100
EREEXBARERLR WEHEKEE — & T 100
EREEEBAR (FE) BRAF BESERANFEERE HEET 100
BE2REHNIERARAF -
BBESE (BE) ARAR" REBBESSREERNEENRBEAR 100
BELREREEEEMARAANKRE
TEHENRRFEZMAT -
BE2EHANIMELRBRAT :
TtREBEEEMERLF S EEEE BN HERLRE ARTEEEER 100
EREREERMFAEARAT TR 2 AT A I R A YRR 9 B 2% R R R AR —FEBER 100
BMNEBESESIRERAR TR LB R R B I 8RR ARETHENTET 100
RIBREERIMFHEBRAT TR 2 AT A I R A YRR 01 B 2% R R R AR ZHBER 100
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SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the Club’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2016:

Effective percentage
Issued and fully paid up held by the Club

Principal activities share capital / registered capital Directly Indirectly

Incorporated in Hong Kong, limited
by share capital and wholly owned:

HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited operates the horse race betting business HK$200,000,000 100

HKJC Football Betting Limited operates the football betting business HK$300,000,000 100

HKJC Lotteries Limited operates the Mark Six lottery business HK$1,000,000 100

The Jockey Club Membership manages Members’ social and HK$100 100
Services Limited recreational facilities

The Hong Kong Jockey Club acts as administrator for staff retirement HK$20 100
(Managers) Limited benefits scheme

HKJC Racing Club Limited manages the Racing Club’s operations HK$10,000,000 100

The Racing Club manages the HKJC Racing Club Limited’s HK$10,000 100
Horse Management Limited horse related activities

HKJC Business Ventures Limited inactive HK$100,000,000 100

HKJC Business Ventures holds the equity interests of the Group’s HK$500,000,000 100
(China) Limited business ventures in China

Limited by guarantee and

wholly controlled:

The Hong Kong Jockey Club acts as nominee for selected projects and - 100
(Charities) Limited holds investments in Beijing Hong Kong

Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited, on behalf
of The Hong Kong Jockey Club

Established in The People’s Republic

of China, limited by registered capital

and wholly owned:

Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club manages Members’ social and US$65,000,000 100
Clubhouse Limited* recreational facilities

Beijing HKJC Technology provides computer hardware and software US$10,000,000 100
Development Limited* technology development and consulting services

Guangzhou HKJC Race Horse constructs and operates horse training facilities RMB1,540,000,000 100
Training Limited ™ in Conghua

Shenzhen HKJC Technology provides computer hardware and software US$3,000,000 100

Development Limited* technology development and consulting services

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Stewards are also directors in certain subsidiaries of the Club. Other directors of the Club’s
subsidiaries include: Mr Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges, Mr Chow Ding Man, Mr Christoph Ganswindt, Dr Gene W W Tsoi, Dr George Mok Yuen Chee,
Ms Gloria Y M Wong, Mr Herbert Tsoi Hak Kong, Mr Julian Chow Kai Wo, Mr Kim K W Mak, Mr Lee Hock Ee, Mr Richard C K Cheung, Mr Martin Thomas
Purbrick (from 25 January 2016), Mr Anthony Brian Kelly (from 1 February 2016), Ms Philana W Y Poon (from 1 July 2015 until 14 August 2015),
Mr Stephen Arrowsmith (until 2 October 2015) and Mr William A Nader (until 1 February 2016).

* Unofficial English name
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PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR FULL RACING SEASON

HEEXEEFHFEWER
BEBT in HK$ million 2016* 2015*
ESHHE Number of race meetings 83 83
i FEERIEERE Amounts wagered by local customers 198,008 191,310
ESR e e ERIMNOEEZE Amounts of non-local bets placed by commingling partners 3,477 2,644
BOEHEEE Total amounts wagered 201,485 193,954
EEREFWA Betting and lottery revenue 32,474 31,629
EEBRRFELH Betting and lottery duty (20,222) (19,839)
R FIMEEFHAE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (47) (49)
REES Lotteries Fund (1,282) (1,167)
R RAEE Net margin and commission 10,923 10,574
Hg A Other revenue 3,325 3,213
14,248 13,787
FEE %N Operating costs (9,627) (9,000)
BEFEIESHTRE Donations to the Trust (3,500) (3,500)
rERE Operating surplus 1,121 1,287
FRA Bk Interest income from deposits 109 156
BERERRHREAEGH (FB)/ Btk (Deficit)/surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios (378) 407
ERESKREN (BB)/ Btk (Deficit)/surplus from Contingency Fund investments (67) 231
BisE A Finance costs (7) (8)
(343) 786
FHE&4E AT (BE)/ &F Share of (losses)/profits of joint ventures (550) 815
HIBRFLIE ATV B B Surplus before taxation 228 2,888
g Taxation (559) (570)
BREERRFEE (B5R)/ Btk Net (deficit)/surplus after taxation (331) 2,318

ESHETEERE

* Refer to note 1 on page 15.




SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS
EBME

EEEREEER THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP
BB RITERNE RACING AND BETTING FACILITIES
HEET in HK$ million 2016* 2015* 2014* 2013" 2012"
ESHHE Number of race meetings 83 83 83 83 83
iR BEERTEE™ Amount wagered by

local customers on horse races™ 102,665 105,281 101,818 93,956 85,637
i BFEEE S RE Horse race betting dividends and

rebates on local bets (86,026) (88,419) (85,656) (78,797) (71,723)
it B FIEEIRA Horse race betting revenue on local bets 16,639 16,862 16,162 15,159 13,914
AN 2 R Horse race betting duty on local bets™* (12,134) (12,300) (11,783) (11,045) (10,125)
A IOE R T It B AR Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong on local bets (47) (49) (36) (26) (24)
A3t B SR ALR Horse race betting net margin

on local bets 4,458 4,513 4,343 4,088 3,765
BIRIZFHEEE Amount wagered on football 86,795 78,249 62,197 50,606 47,285
BREBELS Football betting dividends (74,892) (67,061) (52,435) (42,193) (39,404)
EEREBERA Football betting revenue 11,903 11,188 9,762 8,413 7,881
BERIEEH Football betting duty (5,951) (5,594) (4,881) (4,207) (3,940)
BIREEAF Football betting net margin 5,952 5,594 4,881 4,206 3,941
REIRFBER Amount wagered on lottery 8,548 7,780 7,910 7,627 7,693
RERE Lottery prizes (4,616)  (4,201)  (4,271)  (4,119)  (4,154)
REWA Lottery revenue 3,932 3,579 3,639 3,508 3,539
BHBYB Lottery duty 2,137) (1,945 (1,977) (1,906) (1,923
BHEES Lotteries Fund (1,282) (1,167) (1,187)  (1,144)  (1,154)
"5 Lottery commission 513 467 475 458 462
HAFRA Other net revenue

(FORREEWERE) (excluding gain on sale of properties) 1,515 1,472 1,269 1,210 1,050

I Total operating income 12,438 12,046 10,968 9,962 9,218
BELEMAR Direct operating costs (6,474) (6,132)  (5,765)  (5,424)  (4,921)
HIEIBA Miscellaneous donations (29) (60) 91) (118) (279)
e - # REREEXEH Depreciation, amortisation, impairment

and expensed project costs (1,493) (1,202) (1,074) (890) (757)
M PR AR Total operating costs (7,996)  (7,394) (6,930) (6,432) (5,957)
RERE Operating surplus 4,442 4,652 4,038 3,530 3,261
B8 Taxation (538) (522) (704) (416) @11)
HIRBIIERNKERER Operating surplus after taxation 3,904 4,130 3,334 3,114 2,850
BASZELONEIRERS Unclaimed prizes transferred to

the Snowball Pool 108 75 77 61 91

E e OENRBRER AR ARGBERE
EEE - HEVRRE  IREERAER
TERESRERESZANKE
Bifh o

" EEREUBESR - *

The above figures represent the operating surplus after taxation and before donations to the Trust, gain on sale
of properties, investment returns and transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund.

Financial data is for full seasons.
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SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS % # %

EHEEREEEE (F) THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP
EE RN (4) RACING AND BETTING FACILITIES (cont.)
HEET in HK$ million 2016" 2015* 2014* 2013" 2012"
» BEBERITHELE ** Total amount wagered on horse races 106,142 107,925 101,970 93,956 86,117
W EEENEEEN Less: amount of non-local bets placed by
BEEETRIMEEEE commingling partners on horse races (3,477)  (2,644) (152) - (480)
i EEESEERIEE Amount wagered by
local customers on horse races 102,665 105,281 101,818 93,956 85,637
o BEELBARE *** Total horse race betting duty 12,134 12,300 11,783 11,045 10,159
W EEENEEE Less: horse race betting duty of non-local bets
EINE B REELE placed by commingling partners - - - - (34)
iR BEFEEHR Horse race betting duty by
local customers 12,134 12,300 11,783 11,045 10,125
EXNEEEEHEMRAT THE JOCKEY CLUB MEMBERSHIP SERVICES LIMITED
EERRE MEMBERSHIP FACILITIES
HEET in HK$ million 2016" 2015* 2014* 2013* 2012"
Wiz Income
R Membership subscriptions 282 263 253 233 217
BEASERSEERE Members’ entrance and qualification fees 114 104 106 130 130
BEREBEE Catering deficit (41) 27) (37) (30) (23)
HibIFFBERZER W= Other non-catering income 45 50 46 44 39
400 390 368 377 363
SESEKEETHREY Direct membership administration costs (309) (305) (284) (284) (267)
MEREEXEH Depreciation and expensed project costs (66) (76) (80) (88) (91)
(375) (381) (364) (872) (358)
RERE Operating surplus 25 9 4 5 5
85 (&5i18)/ Bk Financial (deficit)/surplus (188) 40 52 51 26
BREAT (B518)/ Btk (Deficit)/surplus before taxation (163) 49 56 56 31

Fr BEESSEEKARARCITLANRERE
X BHRAFEEMRAEREE S METENM
AENFIRER - TAEERMTANFSE—RATH
BERBRXT (ZO—HF | &) - RESAREHEN
MNAFEEZD WS BREEFRNIBESE -

RZO—AREARA=ZTH EFSTEETKER
RAFEERTN\ELTEEEEBRT (ZO—HF:
“HRETF-BEER)  BEUE  RERSIM=
B=FT=-g8EX (ZO—RF: ZBtTtEE"E
7)) REREESET-ROFNEEET (Z0—
BE A ZR/ATERR) RBEELRENTHE
BARART (ZO—AF  tE=FTLtHEER)  BEH*
RBEE—R=FTAEEERT (ZO—HF &) K
RBEE—RETHESELT (ZO—HF : ZfF—
FTHEEERT) -

" EEREUBESR -

During the year, The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited entered into interest rate swap
contracts with the objective of hedging against the interest rate exposure of a loan which is planned
to be drawn for funding of the Happy Valley Clubhouse extension. Net losses of derivative financial
instruments of HK$194 million were incurred (2015: nil), representing change in the fair value of
these interest rate swap contracts, and were included in the financial deficit during the year.

The net assets of The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited at 30 June 2016 were HK$1,874
million (2015: HK$2,051 million), including property, plant and equipment of HK$232 million (2015:
HK$277 million), long-term investment portfolios of HK$1,248 million (2015: HK$1,260 million),
and current assets of HK$784 million (2015: HK$727 million), less non-current liabilities of HK$136
million (2015: nil) and current liabilities of HK$254 million (2015: HK$215 million).

* Financial data is for full seasons.



STATISTICAL SUMMARY
B BFHE

'BE RACING
2016* 2015* 2014* 2013* 2012*
ESHHE Race meetings
HEXRE Day meetings 48 47 45 46 46
REIRE Night meetings 35 36 38 37 37
HORE Total number of meetings 83 83 83 83 83
Eith B FIGH Races on turf 701 675 683 689 689
2 RIRMBEFGH Races on all-weather track 83 102 88 80 80
HRIZE Total number of races 784 777 771 769 769
|=u Horses
BHEARE Total runners 9,840 9,755 9,627 9,653 9,704
B —5ESETHE Horses winning 1 race 302 300 269 276 321
WS ESETHE Horses winning 2 races 134 129 132 132 112
BH=1SEEFTHE Horses winning 3 races 47 44 54 60 46
BH=5A LEEFTHE Horses winning over 3 races 17 20 18 11 20
BHEEFTHAE Horses with winnings 500 493 473 479 499
FREBHESEBANESTHE Horses not winning — placed 419 408 428 425 422
FREBHESTEBEAVESTHHE Horses not winning — unplaced 387 380 371 379 380
REHBEFTHE Horses not raced 305 305 318 301 273
Brag Total horse population 1,611 1,586 1,590 1,584 1,574
BRERT Retirements 444 398 440 444 438
BEEe Prize money
KRB (BEBT) Total prize money (HK$ million) 1,064 982 890 858 826
Fi5FHES (FBT) Average prize money
per race (HK$’000) 1,357 1,264 1,154 1,115 1,074
BUE¥YRS (F8x) Average prize money
per horse (HK$’000) 660 619 560 541 525
FRERSREFT Percentage of horses
HETAEESL winning prize money in the year 61% 62% 62% 61% 63%
FRERSREFT Percentage of individual runners
HHBESTAZF DL winning prize money in the year 75% 76% 77% 75% 76%
FRBEEAREFE AN Percentage of horses recovering
BEZREFEHEDL basic costs or more in the year 37% 36% 35% 38% 38%
ESBFEHANBAE (F) Average attendance
per meeting (‘000)
fif=%:i) Happy Valley 18.1 17.7 18.2 18.1 17.8
WH Sha Tin 29.3 29.3 28.4 29.6 28.8
ERRIE (BEHET) Total Racing Turnover (HK$ million)
BRI Standard bets 91,204 92,730 88,301 81,427 74,530
1 RIF Exotic bets 14,149 14,286 12,737 11,796 10,967
B BE R Fixed odds bets 789 909 932 733 620
#azg Total 106,142 107,925 101,970 93,956 86,117
FREEEHRTER * Racing statistical data is for full seasons.
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STATISTICAL SUMMARY #i st 85 #E

BA %5 FINANCIAL
HEBET in HK$ million 2016* 2015* 2014* 2013* 2012*
HAEEBAABR Payments of duty and taxation

to Hong Kong Government
ESHEEH Horse race betting duty 12,134 12,300 11,783 11,045 10,159
BEIEEH Football betting duty 5,951 5,594 4,881 4,207 3,940
BHEER Lottery duty 2137 1,945 1,977 1,906 1,923
FIBHE Profits tax 528 518 707 417 412

20,750 20,357 19,348 17,575 16,434

IREB IBBEELARS Donation in lieu of Entertainments tax*

to The Community Chest of Hong Kong 2 2 2 2 2

*

IRABE — NS FIA — AW -
ERRESESREABRRENEEA
FREMBEBARS AHTEE=
OO=#=A=+-A ' RAMME=
O-NF=A=+-A8-

# Entertainments tax was abolished with effect from 1 April 1993. The Club agreed to donate sums equivalent
to entertainments tax on racecourse admission to The Community Chest of Hong Kong for ten years up to 31

March 2003, subsequently extended to 31 March 2018.

== MEMBERSHIP
RAB=+E as at 30 June 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
EEESEEEAN Number of Hong Kong
Jockey Club Members
2EEE Full Members 14,736 14,594 14,421 14,292 14,064
2EEE (S) Full Members (S) 188 181 185 185 184
ESRHEMEE Racing and other Members 8,993 8,690 8,339 8,154 8,058
HREEE Absent Members 2,734 2,724 2,726 4,915 4,863
AFEEE Corporate Members 189 186 182 180 178
26,3840 26,375 25,853 27,726 27,347
MREEEAN Number of The Racing Club Members
mREEs Racing Club Members 1,071 962 853 747 619
BERESAH Number of Mainland Members
BAEE Individual Members 908 828 768 708 587
AFEEE Corporate Members 107 105 100 90 72
28,926 28,270 27,574 29,271 28,625
£EES GROUP EMPLOYEES
RAB=+E as at 30 June 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
i Full-time 6,469 6,101 5,912 5,737 5,545
FRE Part-time 15,793 18,308 18,888 18,427 20,859
FREEEHRTER * Racing statistical data is for full seasons.



